








4.1 Land

Land represents freehold land acquired for office premises and base stations.

4.2 Base station and transmission equipment

 Base station and transmission equipment which form the major part of the telecommunication network include Radio Base Station 
(RBS) and related accessories, Base Station Controllers (BSC), Trans-Receiver Unit (TRU), GSM antenna, tower, site infrastructure, 
civil works, microwave links, Mobile Switching Centres (MSC), Home Location Register (HLR) and other equipment and accessories.

 In September 2010, an agreement was signed between Grameenphone and Huawei for supply of network equipment and related 
maintenance services. Under the agreement, existing base stations and transmission equipment of Grameenphone were replaced 
by new equipment supplied by Huawei. The above transaction has commercial substance in terms of its impact on configuration of 
future cash flows. However in absence of reliable information regarding fair value of the assets acquired or the assets given up, cost 
of the assets acquired were measured at the carrying amount of the assets given up plus any cash consideration paid.

 Exchange of assets under the contract started in February 2011 and completed in December 2011.

4.3 Capital work in progress (CWIP)

 This represents primarily the cost of network equipment under construction and capital inventories. The components of 
network equipment were procured mostly from Ericsson and Huawei.

4.3.1 Capital work in progress  transferred

 The amount of CWIP completed and transferred during the year to the corresponding items of property, plant and 
equipment was as follows:

 Consolidated Separate
 Name of assets 2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Land 317,400 - 317,400 -
 Building - 4,018,620,231 - 4,018,620,231
 Base station 19,172,340,529 2,814,553,658 19,172,340,529 2,814,553,658
 Transmission equipment 10,838,905,993 2,257,885,889 10,838,905,993 2,257,885,889
 Computers and other IT equipment 562,423,707 315,331,460 14,798,184 307,124,216
 Furniture and fixtures 135,112,118 461,969,932 121,717,234 461,969,932
 Vehicles 263,297,572 196,675,019 239,297,572 196,675,019
 CWIP transferred 30,972,397,319 10,065,036,189 30,387,376,912 10,056,828,945
 Adjustment/write off - 23,088 - 23,088
 Total transfer/adjustment of CWIP 30,972,397,319 10,065,059,277 30,387,376,912 10,056,852,033

4.3.2 Capital work in progress - components

 Capital work in progress as at 31 December 2011 for separate and consolidated figures includes capital inventory of Tk 
2,443,958,253 (2010: Consolidated Tk 1,647,029,014 and Separate Tk 1,478,397,052), and base station, transmission and 
other telecom equipment, and civil works of Tk 3,808,736,758 (2010: Tk 2,492,217,414).

4.4 Fibre Optic Network under finance lease

 This represents the fibre optic network acquired under finance lease from Bangladesh Railway (BR). The lease agreement 
with BR is valid until June 2027.

4.5 Allocation of depreciation charged during the year
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Cost of network operation (Note 37) 13,113,781,076 14,736,928,488 13,039,469,227 14,736,911,684
 Operating expenses (Note 37) 727,048,292 836,507,111 715,189,362 836,507,111
  13,840,829,368 15,573,435,599 13,754,658,589 15,573,418,795
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5.1 Software and others

 Software includes business software and network management software. Business software includes mainly billing 

software, Oracle financial software  and other business software. Network management software represents  PPS, Paso link, 

minilink etc.

5.2 Telecom licence - spectrum

 This represents the cost of spectrum licence obtained from BTRC. In September 2008, GP acquired licence for use of 

additional 7.4 MHz spectrum for subsequent 18 years in consideration for BDT 800 million per MHz.

5.3 Capital work in progress (CWIP)

 CWIP includes cost of software in process of installation/implementation and also software under testing phase awaiting 

users' acceptance.

 CWIP of the company includes Tk 284,409,215 (2010: nil) representing cost of Network Engineering Resource 

Management (NERM) software in process of installation by GPIT for GP. Cost of the software for the group stood at Tk 

264,657,497 ( 2010: Tk 103,488,179) after elimination of unrealised gain of Tk 20,866,082 by GPIT from delivery of first 

phase of the project.

5.4 Allocation of amortisation expense during the year

 Consolidated Separate

  2011 2010 2011 2010

  Taka Taka Taka Taka

 Cost of network operation (Note 37) 586,436,259 595,017,187 585,066,214 595,017,187

 Operating expenses (Note 37) 610,668,989 625,119,267 610,668,989 625,119,267

  1,197,105,248 1,220,136,454 1,195,735,203 1,220,136,454
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6 Investment in subsidiary
 This represents GP's investment in GPIT, a subsidiary of GP. GPIT was incorporated on 28 January 2010 with the objective of 

providing IT related services to GP and other external parties. GPIT was registered as a private limited company with an authorised 
share capital of Tk 7,500,000,000 divided into 75,000,000 shares of Tk 100 each. As at 31 December 2011, paid up capital of GPIT 
was Tk. 75,000,000 representing 750,000 shares, out of which 749,999 shares (99.99% of total share capital) were subscribed 
by GP at face value.

7 Long term deposit
 This represented the deposit maintained with Southeast Bank Limited as lien against bank guarantees issued in favour of 

Bangladesh Railway for lease of optical fibre network. This amount was refundable upon cancellation of guarantee. The guarantee 
was cancelled on 28 March 2011, and the deposit was consequently released.

8 Inventories
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Handset, data card and other device  50,293,444  133,374,666 50,293,444 133,374,666
 SIM card 247,653,281 633,598,995 247,653,281 633,598,995
 Scratch card 33,433,034 67,381,665 33,433,034 67,381,665
 IT accessories and services 22,643,490 - - -
  354,023,249 834,355,326 331,379,759 834,355,326

8.1 Movement of inventories  Handset, data card 
  IT accessories and other device SIM card Scratch card
   Taka Taka Taka

 Balance as at 1 January 2010 - 55,362,359 363,659,067 11,848,783
 Purchase during 2010 - 1,187,172,203 805,866,013 72,949,983
 Issue during 2010 - (1,058,734,515) (532,711,300) (17,376,328)
  - 183,800,047 636,813,780 67,422,438
 Adjustment/write-off - (50,425,381) (3,214,785) (40,773)
 Balance as at 31 December 2010 - 133,374,666 633,598,995 67,381,665

 Purchase/addition during 2011 48,550,100 1,067,056,791 747,608,518 155,826,699
 Issue during 2011 (25,906,610) (1,064,955,334) (1,130,416,634) (189,775,330)
  22,643,490 135,476,123 250,790,879 33,433,034
 Adjustment/write-off - (85,182,679) (3,137,598) -
 Balance as at 31 December 2011 22,643,490 50,293,444 247,653,281 33,433,034

8.2 Number of inventories
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Units Units Units Units
 Handset, data card and other device 34,238 136,081 34,238 136,081
 SIM card 4,342,348 6,221,301 4,342,348 6,221,301
 Scratch card 52,583,288 44,681,581 52,583,288 44,681,581

8.3 SIM card
 As at 31 December 2011, GP had 4,342,348 SIM cards (2010: 6,221,301 SIM cards) out of which 1,231,296 SIM cards (2010: 

1,505,220 SIM cards) were intended to be issued with new connection to subscribers. Each new connection currently attracts Tk 
605 as VAT and Supplementary Duty to be paid to Govt. exchequer.

9 Deferred cost of connection revenue
 Balance as at 1 January 484,842,481 483,550,116 484,842,481 483,550,116
 Addition during the year 155,771,288 210,567,585 155,771,288 210,567,585
  640,613,769 694,117,701 640,613,769 694,117,701
 Amortisation during the year (217,756,225) (209,275,220) (217,756,225) (209,275,220)
 Balance as at 31 December 422,857,544 484,842,481 422,857,544 484,842,481
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10 Accounts receivable, net
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka

 Receivables for interconnection ( Note 10.1) 4,573,833,235 4,877,394,453 4,573,833,235 4,877,394,453

 Receivables for post paid and others (Note 10.2) 430,164,458 180,435,548 430,164,458 180,435,548

 Receivables for infrastructure sharing (Note 10.3) 311,685,379 153,522,463 311,685,379 153,522,463

 Receivables for sub lease of fibre optic network(Note 10.4) 29,062,072  22,995,771 29,062,072 22,995,771

 Other receivables for non-mobile service (Note 10.5) 17,199,287 13,597,537 5,298,091 3,311,174

  5,361,944,431 5,247,945,772 5,350,043,235 5,237,659,409

10.1 Receivables for interconnection

 Accounts receivable 4,791,993,644 5,095,844,311 4,791,993,644 5,095,844,311

 Provision for doubtful debts (218,160,409) (218,449,858) (218,160,409) (218,449,858)

  4,573,833,235 4,877,394,453 4,573,833,235 4,877,394,453

10.2 Receivables for post paid and others

 Accounts receivable 474,547,063 234,980,149 474,547,063 234,980,149

 Provision for doubtful debts (44,382,605) (54,544,601) (44,382,605) (54,544,601)

  430,164,458 180,435,548 430,164,458 180,435,548

 Receivables for post paid and others include receivables from post paid subscribers, content providers, and channel partners.

10.3 Receivables for infrastructure sharing

 Accounts receivable 311,685,379 153,522,463 311,685,379 153,522,463

 Provision for doubtful debts - - - -

  311,685,379 153,522,463 311,685,379 153,522,463

10.4 Receivables for sub lease of fibre optic network

 Accounts receivable- sublease 34,947,224 30,351,110 34,947,224 30,351,110

 Provision for doubtful debt (5,885,152) (7,355,339) (5,885,152) (7,355,339)

  29,062,072 22,995,771 29,062,072 22,995,771

10.5 Other receivables for non-mobile service

 Other receivables for non-mobile service include receivables against broadband internet service, bill pay service of GP and 
receivables against IT services provided by GPIT.

10.6 Provision for doubtful debts

 Balance as at 1 January 280,349,798 145,360,821 280,349,798 145,360,821

 Provision made during the year 42,622,969 251,991,051 42,622,969 251,991,051

  322,972,767 397,351,872 322,972,767 397,351,872

 Written off during the year (54,544,601) (117,002,074) (54,544,601) (117,002,074)

 Balance as at 31 December 268,428,166 280,349,798 268,428,166 280,349,798

10.7 Security against accounts receivable

 Good and secured 410,160,978 402,024,879 410,160,978 402,024,879

 Good with personal security 4,951,783,453 4,845,920,893 4,939,882,257 4,835,634,530

 Doubtful and bad 268,428,166 280,349,798 268,428,166 280,349,798

 Gross accounts receivable 5,630,372,597 5,528,295,570 5,618,471,401 5,518,009,207

 Provision for bad and doubtful debts (268,428,166) (280,349,798) (268,428,166) (280,349,798)

 Accounts receivable, net 5,361,944,431 5,247,945,772 5,350,043,235 5,237,659,409 
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10.8 Debts due by directors, officers and other related parties

 As at 31 December 2011, accounts receivable do not include any receivable from:

 (a) the directors and other officers of the company/group;

 (b) firms or private limited companies respectively in which  any director of the group  is a partner, director or member, other than 
those disclosed in note 48.2; and

 (c) companies under the same management.

11 Other receivables
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka

 Interest receivable 22,142,478 156,269,520 22,142,478 156,269,520

 Receivable from Ericsson 462,964,658 428,123,981 462,964,658 428,123,981

 Receivable from other Telenor entities (Note 11.1)  260,695,250 182,467,922 260,695,250 182,467,922

 Receivable from GPIT (Note 11.2) - - 250,767,772 304,773,298

 Receivable from other external parties 170,522,638 161,158,846 157,985,343 158,883,376

  916,325,024 928,020,269 1,154,555,501 1,230,518,097

11.1 Receivable from other Telenor entities

 Receivable from other Telenor entities includes reimbursable expenses incurred on behalf of Telenor and its subsidiaries as well as 
other inter company receivables.

11.2 Receivable from GPIT

 Receivable from GPIT includes receivable for reimbursable cost for computers and other IT equipments of Tk 127,337,217 (2010: 
Tk 168,631,953) and other reimbursable operating expenses and relevant VAT.

12 Advances, deposits and prepayments

 Advances

 Advance to employees (Note 12.1) 5,051,544 78,945,026 1,755,828 70,281,406

 Advance to Bangladesh Railway 560,002 5,545,166 560,002 5,545,166

 Advance for capital expenditure (Note 12.2) 16,291,728,470 343,053,611 16,291,728,470 321,809,991

 Advance to GPIT for NERM project - - - 161,032,225

 Advance VAT (Note 12.3) - 30,016,625 - -

 Other advances 853,156 1,006,311 853,156 853,156

  16,298,193,172 458,566,739 16,294,897,456 559,521,944

 Deposits

 Deposits for bank guarantee (Note 12.4) 129,157,944 127,957,944 126,457,944 127,957,944

 Security deposit for utilities and services 77,353,046 60,483,786 73,321,638 60,483,786

  206,510,990 188,441,730 199,779,582 188,441,730

 Prepayments

 Prepayment against rent (Note 12.5) 333,766,889 295,451,291 333,766,889 295,451,291

 Prepayment against expenses (Note 12.6) 290,711,445 679,178,079 657,801,144 675,546,464

  624,478,334 974,629,370 991,568,033 970,997,755

  17,129,182,496 1,621,637,839 17,486,245,071 1,718,961,429

12.1 Advance to employees
 This includes advances made to employees in relation to official travel, training,  office utility bills, other office running expenses etc.

12.2 Advance for capital expenditure

 This  includes payment of the first instalment to BTRC (Tk 15,981,880,000) for renewal of 2G  licence.  Given the facts as explained in note 
1 to these financial statements, the licence has not been recognised in the financial statements as per IAS/BAS 38: Intangible Assets.
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12.3 Advance VAT

 This represents advance VAT of GPIT and includes debit balance of VAT current account, and VAT deducted at source (which can be 
claimed as rebate) by customers from GPIT's bills against which VAT deduction certificates and/or copy of treasury challans are yet 
to be received.

12.4 Deposits for bank guarantee

 This represents the guarantee margins with different banks against guarantee provided by them favouring Commissioner of 
Customs and other parties.

12.5 Prepayment against rent

 This represents payment of rent in advance for base stations and office locations.

12.6 Prepayment against expenses

 This includes prepaid insurance premium, payment to suppliers for operating inventories, spare parts, software support 
maintenance and others.

12.7 Security against advances
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka

 Good and secured 309,848,470 343,053,611 309,848,470 321,809,991

 Good with personal security 15,988,344,702 115,513,128 15,985,048,986 237,711,953

 Doubtful and bad - - - -

  16,298,193,172 458,566,739 16,294,897,456 559,521,944

 Provision for bad and doubtful amount - - - -

 Total advances 16,298,193,172 458,566,739 16,294,897,456 559,521,944

12.8 Loans and advances to subsidiaries, directors, officers and other related parties

 Other than those  mentioned in note 12.1 and 48.2, there were no loans or advances to-

 (a) Directors of the company/group;

 (b) Firms or private limited companies respectively in which  any director of Grameenphone Ltd. is a partner, director or member;  

        and

 (c) Subsidiaries or companies under the same management.

13 Short term investment
 This includes the amount of Fixed Deposits Receipts (FDR) of Tk. 98,897,594 (2010: Tk 1,161,620) with Southeast Bank Limited, Tk. 

46,132,500 (2010: nil)  with One Bank Ltd and Tk. 36,826,875 (2010: Tk 2,752,567,490) with other banks as at the statement of financial 
position date having original maturity of three months or more. The interest rates on these FDRs range from 8.25% to 13.75% (2010: 
8.25% to 11%). Out of this total amount, Tk 135,459,375 (2010: Tk 135,459,375) is restricted to the settlement of bills pay liabilities.

14  Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash in hand 4,424,850 3,737,483 4,424,850 3,697,741

 Cash at bank (Note 14.1) 8,050,172,142 18,927,765,069 7,623,748,644 18,671,232,085

  8,054,596,992 18,931,502,552 7,628,173,494 18,674,929,826

14.1 Cash at bank

 Consolidated cash at bank includes cash of Tk 3,196,335,960 (2010: Tk 1,790,754,085) at Citibank N.A. , Tk 444,441,720 (2010: 
Tk 260,262,726) at The City Bank Limited , Tk 2,493,754 (2010: Tk 1,141,777,137) at Shahjalal Islami Bank Limited , Tk 479,586,146 
(2010: Tk 1,355,012,298) at Southeast Bank Limited and cash at other banks.

 Cash at bank also includes utility bill pay service collection accounts amounting to Tk. 416,563,884 (2010: Tk. 418,184,172). Use of 
this amount is restricted to settlement of payable for bills pay receipts as mentioned in note 26.  
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15 Share capital
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
 Authorised: Taka Taka Taka Taka
 4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000

  40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000

 
 Issued, subscribed, called up and paid up:
 1,350,300,022 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220

  13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220

 The company was initially registered with ordinary shares of Tk 43.00 each. These shares were subsequently converted into Tk 10 
shares through a 43:1 split at the 16th EGM (held on 15 July 2008) and 1:10 reverse split at the 19th EGM (held on 2 July 2009).

 There has been no change in share capital during the years 2010 and 2011.

15.1 Shareholding position
a) Percentage of shareholdings
 % of holding Value of shares (Taka)
  As at As at As at As at
 Name of shareholders 31 December 2011 31 December 2010 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
 Telenor Mobile Communications AS, Norway 55.8% 55.8%  7,534,077,240 7,534,077,240
 Nye Telenor Mobile Communications II AS, Norway 0.0% 0.0% 2,150 2,150
 Nye Telenor Mobile Communications III AS, Norway 0.0% 0.0% 2,150 2,150
 Telenor Asia Pte Ltd, Singapore 0.0% 0.0% 2,150 2,150
 Grameen Telecom, Bangladesh 34.2% 34.2% 4,617,664,090 4,617,664,090
 Grameen Kalyan, Bangladesh 0.0% 0.0% 220 220
 Grameen Shakti, Bangladesh 0.0% 0.0% 220 220
 General public, GP employees and institution 10.0% 10.0% 1,351,252,000 1,351,252,000
  100% 100% 13,503,000,220 13,503,000,220

b) Classification of shareholders by range of number of shares held
 No. of shareholders No. of shares
  As at As at As at As at
 Shareholding range 31 December 2011 31 December 2010 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
 1-500 68,470 81,024 15,227,428 17,945,880
 501-5,000 16,547 17,159 23,941,792 24,439,298
 5,001-10,000 1,099 1,089 7,980,838 7,853,255
 10,001-20,000 524 527 7,324,730 7,481,613
 20,001-30,000 141 121 3,458,975 2,917,988
 30,001-40,000 82 73 2,849,538 2,565,305
 40,001-50,000 46 46 2,118,778 2,091,771
 50,001-100,000 89 85 6,403,346 6,156,150
 100,001-1,000,000 93 90 26,703,195 23,516,430
 1,000,001-1,000,000,000 14 12 1,254,291,402 1,255,332,332
  87,105 100,226 1,350,300,022 1,350,300,022

16 Share premium
 In 2009, total amount of Tk 8,370,259,450 was received as share premium in respect of shares issued to shareholders. Net issue 

cost of Tk 543,777,495  was set off against share premium as per IAS/BAS 32: Financial Instruments: Presentation

17 Capital reserve
 In 1999, Grameenphone issued 5,086,779 preference shares of Tk 45.84 each, which were converted into ordinary shares of Tk 

43.00 each in 2004. The balance Tk 2.84 per share was transferred to capital reserve account. The conversion was in accordance 
with clauses 41 to 44 of Memorandum and Articles of Association of GP. This amount is not distributable  as dividend as per the 
Companies Act 1994.
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18 Deposit from shareholders
 Deposit from shareholders as at the statement of financial position date represents balance of the share money received from 

Telenor Mobile Communications AS, Norway, which has not been used against issuance of shares.

19 General reserve
 Grameenphone availed tax holiday benefits from 1 June 2001 to 31 May 2006 as per the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance 1984. 

A tax holiday reserve was created during the Tax Holiday period to ensure investment in compliance with the said ordinance. The 
reserve was subsequently transferred to general reserve upon fulfilment of necessary conditions.

20 Non controlling interest
 Non controlling interest is the equity in GPIT not attributable, directly or indirectly, to GP. This includes the amount of paid up 

capital and proportionate share of accumulated profit/loss of GPIT attributable to shareholders of GPIT other than GP.

21 Deposit from agents and subscribers
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Security deposits from subscribers (Note 21.1) 410,160,978 402,024,879 410,160,978 402,024,879
 Security deposits from dealers and agents (Note 21.2) 45,615,000 42,615,000 45,615,000 42,615,000
  455,775,978 444,639,879 455,775,978 444,639,879

21.1 Security deposits from subscribers
 This represents security money obtained from post paid subscribers against their dues and can be used in full or in part to adjust 

any unpaid portion of such dues. Any unadjusted amount of security deposits is refundable to subscribers on termination of 
customer relationship or on demand.

21.2 Security deposits from dealers and agents
 Security deposits from dealers and agents represent security money obtained from channel partners (i.e. dealer, distributor, outlet 

agent). These deposits can be used in full or in part to adjust any amount due  and are refundable at the termination of contract.

22 Finance lease obligation
 Grameenphone entered into a lease agreement with Bangladesh Railway (BR) in 1997 for the right to use the optical fibre network 

along with its ancillary facilities. The lease was treated as operating lease until the end of 2004. Following an amendment to the 
lease agreement in 2004, it has been reclassified as finance lease and has been treated as such since 1 January 2005. The lease 
agreement was further amended on 13 June 2007 with Guaranteed Annual Rental (GAR) being revised and lease term being 
extended up to June 2027.

 Obligation under finance lease was initially measured at an amount equal to the present value of minimum lease payments. The 
effect of change in lease agreement in 2007 was accounted for as an adjustment of the leased asset and obligation by the 
amount equal to the difference between the present value of revised minimum lease payments and the carrying amount of lease 
obligation at that date. GP's incremental borrowing rate, which was 15% at the inception of the lease,  was used to calculate the 
present value of minimum lease payments, as it was impracticable to determine the implicit interest rate at that time.

 Finance lease obligation 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838
 Less: Current portion (Note 22.1) - - - -
  5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838

 Finance lease obligation as at 31 December 2011 is payable as follows:
     Present value of
   Future minimum  minimum lease
   lease payments Interest payments
   Taka Taka Taka
 (i)   Not later than one year  738,296,891 738,296,891 -
 (ii)  Later than one year but not later than five years  3,254,533,236 3,254,533,236 -
 (iii) Later than five years  10,833,376,835 5,813,570,997 5,019,805,838
   14,826,206,962 9,806,401,124 5,019,805,838
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 Finance lease obligation as at 31 December 2010 was payable as follows:
     Present value of
   Future minimum  minimum lease
   lease payments Interest payments
   Taka Taka Taka
 (i)   Not later than one year  708,162,324 708,162,324 -
 (ii)  Later than one year but not later than five years  3,133,994,968 3,133,994,968 -
 (iii) Later than five years  11,692,211,996 6,672,406,158 5,019,805,838
   15,534,369,288 10,514,563,450 5,019,805,838

22.1 Current portion of finance lease obligation
 Current portion of finance lease obligation represents the principal amount of lease obligation included in the minimum lease 

payments falling due within 12 months from the end of the reporting period. Minimum lease payments for fibre optic network were 
revised in June 2007 with an annual escalation clause resulting in higher lease payments in later parts of the lease tenure. Such 
increasing cash flow pattern has led to higher amount of interest expense being recognised in the earlier periods and minimum lease 
payments falling short of the interest amount. Accordingly, current portion of finance lease obligation was nil for 2011 and 2010.

23 Deferred tax liabilities
 Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been recognised and measured in accordance with the provisions of IAS/BAS 12: Income 

Taxes. Related deferred tax expense/(income) have been disclosed in note 44. Deferred tax assets and liabilities for separate 
financial statements are attributable to the following:

     Taxable/ (deductible)
     temporary
   Carrying amount Tax base difference
   Taka Taka Taka
 As at 31 December 2011
 Property, plant and equipment (excluding land and
     CWIP and leased assets) (Note 4)  56,717,406,917 24,371,533,908 32,345,873,009
 Property, plant and equipment under finance lease (Note 4)  5,156,017,162 - 5,156,017,162
 Difference for vehicle (Note 23.1)  (74,547,280) - (74,547,280)
     37,427,342,891

 Accounts receivable (Note 10)  5,350,043,235 5,499,444,974 (149,401,739)
 Finance lease obligation (Note 22)  (5,019,805,838) - (5,019,805,838)
 Accrued interest on finance lease obligation (Note 30)  (215,643,579) - (215,643,579)
 Asset retirement obligations  (47,619,576) - (47,619,576)
 Provisions  (14,481,616,392) (11,752,424,605) (2,729,191,787)
 Net taxable temporary difference    29,265,680,372

 Applicable tax rate (Note 3.8)    35%
 Deferred tax liabilities    10,242,988,130

 As at 31 December 2010
 Property, plant and equipment (excluding land and  61,251,718,806 29,220,855,793 32,030,863,013
      CWIP and leased assets) (Note 4)
 Property, plant and equipment under finance lease (Note 4)  5,490,540,520 - 5,490,540,520
 Difference for vehicle (Note 23.1)  (117,530,099) - (117,530,099)
   66,624,729,227 29,220,855,793 37,403,873,434

 Accounts receivable (Note 10)  5,237,659,409 5,426,305,053 (188,645,644)
 Finance lease obligation (Note 22)  (5,019,805,838) - (5,019,805,838)
 Accrued interest on finance lease obligation (Note 30)  (144,706,628) - (144,706,628)
 Asset retirement obligations  (47,619,576) - (47,619,576)
 Net taxable temporary difference    32,003,095,748

 Applicable tax rate (Note 3.8)    35%
 Deferred tax liabilities    11,201,083,512
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 As per the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance 1984 (ITO), any income derived from the business of software development and 
Information Technology Enabled Services (ITES) is subject to tax exemption until 30 June 2013 and hence deferred tax liability for 
GPIT is not considered.

23.1 Difference for vehicle
 This represents the permanent difference related to sedan cars, not plying for hire, owned by GP. As per the provisions of Income 

Tax Ordinance 1984, depreciation on such cars is allowed only up to certain limit of cost (currently Tk. 2 million per car) of such cars 
for tax purpose. Difference for vehicle represents the amount of cost exceeding such limits.

24 Long term provisions
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Asset retirement obligations (Note 24.1) 104,716,420 162,876,392 104,716,420 162,876,392
 Employee benefits - provision for gratuity (Note 24.2) - - - -
  104,716,420 162,876,392 104,716,420 162,876,392

24.1 Asset retirement obligations (ARO)
 Balance as at 1 January 162,876,392 160,033,350 162,876,392 160,033,350
 Provision made during the year 24,189,972 18,105,501 24,189,972 18,105,501
  187,066,364 178,138,851 187,066,364 178,138,851
 Adjustment/payment made during the year (82,349,944) (15,262,459) (82,349,944) (15,262,459)
 Balance as at 31 December 104,716,420 162,876,392 104,716,420 162,876,392

 Grameenphone Ltd. recognises asset retirement obligations (ARO) in respect of roof-top base stations and office space for any 
constructive and/or legal obligations for dismantlement, removal or restoration incurred by the company as a consequence of 
installing or constructing the sites. ARO is measured at the present value of expected cash out flows required to settle such 
obligations. Unwinding of the discount is charged as financial expense in the profit or loss.

24.2 Employee benefits - provision for gratuity
 Balance as at 1 January - 11,454,139 - 11,454,139
 Provisions made during the year 365,599,706 361,074,926 345,240,164 342,551,685
  365,599,706 372,529,065 345,240,164 354,005,824
 Transfer to fund during the year (365,599,706) (372,529,065) (345,240,164) (354,005,824)
 Balance as at 31 December - - - -

25 Accounts payable
 Liability for capital expenditure 5,666,817,629 2,254,497,329 5,645,629,609 2,246,290,076
 Payable for expenses:
      Interconnection charges (Note 25.1) 32,468,286 28,402,068 32,468,286 28,402,068
      Revenue sharing with content providers 211,002,698 113,692,440 233,864,396 113,692,440
      International roaming services 69,331,739 63,481,362 69,331,739 63,481,362
      Training and travel expenses 38,141,067 28,761,409 36,481,195 27,387,721
      Sales and promotional expenses 151,785,409 96,973,807 150,195,815 96,973,807
      Consultancy and professional fees 3,381,308,109 1,671,648,455 3,278,699,664 1,671,648,455
      Cost of  SIM card, scratch card, handsets etc. 249,980,238 217,699,901 249,980,238 217,699,901
      Office and general expenses 203,824,590 101,903,913 194,689,584 79,932,199
      PCM related expenses 56,996,185 48,764,725 56,996,185 48,764,725
      Network operations and maintenance 364,378,386 325,338,658 360,989,513 314,169,878
  4,759,216,707 2,696,666,738 4,663,696,615 2,662,152,556
 Payable for others:
      Tax deducted at source from suppliers 244,368,578 190,429,664 244,368,578 190,429,664
      VAT deducted at source from suppliers 105,660,831 95,765,284  105,660,831 95,765,284
      Payables for bills pay receipt 21,236,584 33,631,522 21,236,584 33,631,522 
      Retention money from suppliers 43,033,714 25,457,240 43,033,714 25,457,240
  414,299,707 345,283,710 414,299,707 345,283,710
  10,840,334,043 5,296,447,777 10,723,625,931 5,253,726,342
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25.1 Interconnection charges
 These represent accrued interconnection charges with respect to off-net local calls and international calls. According to 

prevailing BTRC policies, each operator is liable to pay interconnection charges to other operators for outgoing off-net calls.

26 Payable to government and autonomous bodies
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Bangladesh Telecommunication Regulatory Commission (BTRC)
 Frequency and spectrum charges (Note 26.1) 295,992,451 226,000,964 295,992,451 226,000,964
 Revenue sharing (Note 26.2) 1,620,995,267 1,388,092,365 1,620,995,267 1,388,092,365
  1,916,987,718 1,614,093,329 1,916,987,718 1,614,093,329
 Supplementary duty on SIM payable to NBR 2,535,910,188 2,869,736,536 2,535,910,188 2,869,736,536
 Share of sub-lease rent payable to Bangladesh Railway 7,516,089 10,908,544 7,516,089 10,908,544
 Payable for Bills Pay receipt 353,691,950 365,605,260 353,691,950 365,605,260
  4,814,105,945 4,860,343,669 4,814,105,945 4,860,343,669

26.1 Frequency and spectrum charges
 This relates to charges payable to BTRC for use of frequency and spectrum allocated to the company and roaming line rent.

26.2 Revenue sharing
 As per the operating licence agreement as amended on 16 April 2006, GP shares 5.5 % of its collected rent and call charges with 

BTRC. Under the 2G licence renewal guidelines, additional 1% of revenue has been imposed as contribution to Social Obligation 
Fund. Revenue sharing and Social Obligation Fund under the renewal guidelines will be effective from the date of licence renewal.

27 Unearned revenue
 This includes mainly the unused portion of scratch cards, flexi load and advance post paid bills received for which services have 

not yet been provided.

28 VAT payable
 This represents VAT amount payable to NBR arising from provision of services by the company that are subject to VAT.

29 Income tax provision
 Movement of income tax provision is shown as under:
 Consolidated
   2011 2010 1 January 2010
   Taka Taka Taka
 Opening balance  13,396,693,877 9,887,067,874 12,228,778,445
 Adjustment for reversal of income tax provision (Note 29.1)  - - (2,341,710,571)
 Adjusted opening balance  13,396,693,877 9,887,067,874 9,887,067,874
 Provision made during the year  15,073,255,644 12,512,235,175 -
   28,469,949,521 22,399,303,049 9,887,067,874
 Paid during the year (including tax deducted at source)  (10,663,600,361) (9,002,609,172) -
 Closing balance  17,806,349,160 13,396,693,877 9,887,067,874

 Separate
   2011 2010 1 January 2010
   Taka Taka Taka
 Opening balance  13,396,161,393 9,887,067,874 12,228,778,445
 Adjustment for reversal of income tax provision (Note 29.1)  - - (2,341,710,571)
 Adjusted opening balance  13,396,161,393 9,887,067,874 9,887,067,874
 Provision made during the year  15,070,341,426 12,511,509,061 -
   28,466,502,819 22,398,576,935 9,887,067,874
 Paid during the year (including tax deducted at source)  (10,661,380,622) (9,002,415,542) -
 Closing balance  17,805,122,197 13,396,161,393 9,887,067,874
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29.1 Current tax provision amounting  to Tk. 2,341,710,571 was found to be in excess of requirement in a periodic review performed by 
the management in June 2011. The excess provision resulted mainly from failure to reverse a portion of unutilized provision upon 
completion of the final assessment for 2004 and 2005. This was treated as a prior period error and accordingly was corrected by 
restating the opening balances of the earliest prior period presented, i.e.  2010.

30 Accrued interest
 Accrued interest includes Tk. 215,643,579 (2010 : Tk. 144,706,628 ) representing interest on finance lease obligation.

31 Other liabilities
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Unclaimed dividend 52,815,658 36,764,206 52,815,658 36,764,206
 Other external liabilities (Note 31.1) 45,734,208 20,876,935 28,158,036 16,343,151
  98,549,866 57,641,141 80,973,694 53,107,357

31.1 Other external liabilities
 Other external liabilities include group's payables to Telenor Start II AS for Cellbazaar operations, withholding tax and VAT, 

liabilities for share money refund, advance from customer etc.

32 Deferred connection revenue
 Balance as at 1 January 581,904,397 541,731,926 581,904,397 541,731,926
 Addition during the year 221,969,943 290,789,714 221,969,943 290,789,714
  803,874,340 832,521,640 803,874,340 832,521,640
 Recognised as revenue during the year (260,900,804) (250,617,243) (260,900,804) (250,617,243)
 Balance as at 31 December 542,973,536 581,904,397 542,973,536 581,904,397

33 Provisions
 International roaming services 35,858,883 8,705,560 35,858,883 8,705,560
 Commission and other operational expenses 86,210,595 81,400,216 86,210,595 81,400,216
 Cost of  SIM card, scratch card, handsets etc. 1,467,605,297 1,302,991,773  1,467,605,297 1,302,991,773
 Interconnection cost 1,952,012,266 4,938,280,452 1,952,012,266 4,938,280,452
 Personnel expenses (Note-33.1) 3,817,247,153 2,046,160,454 3,721,394,434 1,979,970,377
 Employee provident fund - 26,643,930 - 26,643,930
 Training and travelling expenses 71,457,383 62,799,455 70,906,726 48,389,507
 Sales and promotional expenses 837,556,535 776,568,213 837,556,535 776,568,213
 Consultancy and professional fees 254,114,389 703,307,972 231,153,891 703,307,972
 Network operations and maintenance 1,884,811,891 711,382,083 1,808,695,969 895,141,717
 Capital expenditure 3,376,793,523 1,945,390,245 3,376,793,523 1,945,390,245
 Office and general expenses (Note-33.2) 889,188,708 642,196,637 883,710,286 640,651,620
 Lease rent to Power Grid Company of Bangladesh Ltd. 9,717,987 4,788,000 9,717,987 4,788,000
  14,682,574,610 13,250,614,990 14,481,616,392 13,352,229,582

33.1 Personnel expenses
 This includes provision for bonus, earned leave encashment, any unpaid salary, and other personnel related expenses.

33.2 Office and general expenses
 Provision for office and general expenses includes provision for vehicle running expenses, stationery, utility, communication 

expenses, etc.
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34 Revenue
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Traffic revenue
   -Post paid 2,671,896,715 2,601,806,772 2,671,896,715 2,601,806,772
   -Prepaid 69,746,817,670 58,804,470,026 69,746,817,670 58,804,470,026
  72,418,714,385 61,406,276,798 72,418,714,385 61,406,276,798
 Subscription revenue
   -Post paid 566,479,749 632,968,125 566,479,749 632,968,125
 
 Connection revenue
    -Post paid 3,902,385 11,215,442 3,902,385 11,215,442
   -Prepaid 262,344,039 235,311,520 262,344,039 235,311,520
  266,246,424 246,526,962 266,246,424 246,526,962
 Roaming revenue
   -Inbound 417,108,357 211,251,659 417,108,357 211,251,659
   -Outbound 321,584,002 253,026,794 321,584,002 253,026,794
  738,692,359 464,278,453 738,692,359 464,278,453
 Interconnection revenue
   -Post paid 132,963,093 130,314,299 132,963,093 130,314,299
   -Prepaid 8,543,517,399 7,292,825,149 8,543,517,399 7,292,825,149
  8,676,480,492 7,423,139,448 8,676,480,492 7,423,139,448
 Other mobile revenue
   -Customer support revenue 11,715,274 9,939,263 11,715,274 9,939,263
   -SMS and MMS revenue 953,238,279 940,054,489 953,238,279 940,054,489
   -Internet and data revenue 1,560,131,157 1,199,732,065 1,560,131,157 1,199,732,065
   -VAS and other revenue  (Note 34.1) 1,586,704,168 876,590,604 1,586,704,168 876,590,604
  4,111,788,878 3,026,316,421 4,111,788,878 3,026,316,421
 Non- mobile revenue
   -Sale of handset 826,107,532 720,457,284 826,107,532 720,457,284
   -Sale of data card 279,900,439 417,901,222 279,900,439 417,901,222
   -Sale of vehicle tracking systems 18,929,131 4,488,791 18,929,131 4,488,791
   -Infrastructure sharing revenue 1,086,281,712 366,748,338 1,086,281,712 366,748,338
   -Commissions 1,945,796 4,323,941 1,945,796 4,323,941
   -Broadband internet revenue 387,996 291,005 387,996 291,005
   -Bills pay service 14,745,882 10,781,036 14,745,882 10,781,036
   -IT service maintenance fee (Note 34.2) 52,916,151 8,578,610 - -
  2,281,214,639 1,533,570,227 2,228,298,488 1,524,991,617
  89,059,616,926 74,733,076,434 89,006,700,775 74,724,497,824

34.1 VAS and other revenue
 Value Added Service (VAS) revenue includes revenue from content sale (e.g. medical services and music download services, news 

services, and other contents), call block service, mobile back-up service etc.

34.2 IT service maintenance fee
 This represents revenue earned by the group on account of IT services provided to external customers, both foreign and local.

35 Direct cost of network revenue
 Cost of interconnection (Note 35.1) 3,816,501,489 3,220,716,202 3,816,501,489 3,220,716,202
 Cost of  SIM card, scratch card, handset etc. (Note 35.2) 2,362,735,807 2,313,553,976 2,362,735,807 2,313,553,976
 International roaming cost (Note 35.3) 226,833,866 218,580,685 226,833,866 218,580,685
 Licence fees and spectrum charges (Note 35.4) 775,692,609 713,715,145 775,692,609  713,715,145
 Revenue sharing with BTRC (Note 35.5) 4,779,925,045 3,811,231,491 4,779,925,045 3,811,231,491
 Dealers' and agents' commission 5,427,228,305 4,768,977,779 5,427,228,305 4,768,977,779
 Revenue sharing with content providers and others 263,587,723 18,667,116 280,112,858 18,667,116
  17,652,504,844 15,065,442,394 17,669,029,979 15,065,442,394 
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35.1 Cost of interconnection

 This represents the amount payable to the other operators (including interconnection exchange and international gateway 
operators) for outgoing off-net calls (including international calls) made by GP subscribers.

 Rates for interconnection charges are guided by BTRC directives. Cost of interconnection is measured on the basis of actual 
outgoing off-net t raffic information.

35.2 Cost of  SIM card, scratch card, handset etc.
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 SIM card 1,128,784,262 1,197,437,835 1,128,784,262 1,197,437,835
 Scratch card 146,622,839 49,596,375 146,622,839 49,596,375
 Handset, data card and other device 1,087,328,706 1,066,519,766 1,087,328,706 1,066,519,766
  2,362,735,807 2,313,553,976 2,362,735,807 2,313,553,976

35.3 International roaming cost

 This represents the roaming charges payable to the roaming partners for use of roaming partners' network by GP subscribers.

35.4 Licence fees and spectrum charges

 This represents operating licence fee and spectrum  charges payable to BTRC as per licence agreement.

35.5 Revenue sharing with BTRC

 As per the operating licence agreement as amended on 16 April 2006, GP shares 5.5 % of its collected rent and call charges with 
BTRC. Under the 2G licence renewal guidelines, additional 1% of revenue has been imposed as contribution to Social Obligation 
Fund. Revenue sharing and Social Obligation Fund under the renewal guidelines will be effective from the date of licence renewal.

36 Network operation and maintenance expenses
 Rent (Note 36.1) 730,650,954 645,947,505 730,650,954 645,947,505

 Electricity charges (Note 36.2) 1,298,616,406 1,384,933,652 1,298,616,405 1,384,933,652

 Operation and maintenance - base station 916,432,229 736,012,502 916,432,229 736,012,502

 Operation and maintenance - switch 1,374,529,390 766,172,089 1,374,529,390 766,172,089

 Operation and maintenance - optical fibre network 50,967,789 43,678,791 50,967,789 43,678,791

 Network quality maintenance expenses (Note 36.3) 1,924,216,734 1,813,743,149 2,201,684,222 2,132,102,091

 PCM operation and maintenance (Note 36.4) 8,519,947 10,306,363 8,519,947 10,306,363

 Lease rent for submarine cable 182,198,508 204,887,611 182,198,508 204,887,611

  6,486,131,957 5,605,681,662 6,763,599,444 5,924,040,604

36.1  Rent

 Rent includes location rent for base stations, mobile switching centres (switch) and  other locations. Future minimum lease 
payments under non cancellable operating lease agreements for such locations are payable as follows:

 (i)   Not later than one year 494,108,833 452,829,940 494,108,833 452,829,940

 (ii)  Later than one year but not later than five years 1,818,562,622 1,970,092,627 1,818,562,622 1,970,092,627 

 (iii) Later than five years 3,423,705,657 3,421,268,732 3,423,705,657 3,421,268,732

  5,736,377,112 5,844,191,299 5,736,377,112 5,844,191,299

36.2 Electricity charges

 These represent electricity charges for base stations, mobile switching centres (switch), other transmission equipment etc. This also 
includes such expenses incurred in connection with maintenance of fibre optic network at selected offices of Bangladesh Railway.

36.3 Network quality maintenance expenses

 Network quality maintenance expenses include consultancy charges and other operation and maintenance fees incurred for 
telecom network. 

36.4 PCM operation and maintenance

 PCM operation and maintenance expenses include rental and maintenance charges for PCM and microwave link.
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37 Depreciation and amortisation
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Cost of network operation
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,113,781,076 14,736,928,488 13,039,469,227 14,736,911,684
 Amortisation of intangible assets 586,436,259 595,017,187 585,066,214 595,017,187
  13,700,217,335 15,331,945,675 13,624,535,441 15,331,928,871

 Operating expenses
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 727,048,292 836,507,111 715,189,362 836,507,111
 Amortisation of intangible assets 610,668,989 625,119,267 610,668,989 625,119,267
  1,337,717,281 1,461,626,378 1,325,858,351 1,461,626,378
  15,037,934,616 16,793,572,053 14,950,393,792 16,793,555,249

38 Other income, net
 Rental income from sublease of fibre optic network, net 75,212,038 47,385,022 75,212,038 47,385,022
 Rental income from GPIT - - 27,363,540 14,897,927
 Franchisee fees and others 6,437,659 13,031,171 6,437,659 13,031,171
  81,649,697 60,416,193 109,013,237 75,314,120

39 General and administrative expenses
 Personnel expenses 7,153,425,191 6,357,733,483 6,911,063,252 6,271,935,440
 Employee training and ancillary expenses 97,865,470 45,956,956 97,865,470 45,956,956
 Rent (Note 39.1) 288,626,433 396,214,903 279,334,425 382,578,015
 Office maintenance and running expenses 698,916,489 718,505,421 690,932,783 712,498,019
 Travelling expenses 130,876,971 158,099,188 119,269,855 137,276,620
 Vehicle running expenses 507,164,688 423,339,553 483,160,790 412,930,925
 Telephone and communication 77,522,440 71,612,442 77,522,440 68,214,866
 Printing, postage and stationery 138,663,492 100,990,936 132,232,634 92,612,077
 Legal and professional fees (Note 39.2) 98,839,798 60,818,647 46,274,429 29,512,505
 Audit fees 2,325,000 2,325,000 1,800,000 1,800,000
 Meeting expenses (Note 39.3) 67,602,757 45,978,161 67,602,757 45,969,951
 Entertainment expenses 18,819,621 15,716,391 18,207,033 15,716,391
 Revenue collection charges 13,891,795 18,836,311 13,891,795 18,836,311
 Bad debt expense (Note 39.4) 15,300,696 218,206,842 15,300,696 218,206,842
  9,309,840,841 8,634,334,234 8,954,458,359 8,454,044,918

39.1 Rent
 Rent includes rent for office, warehouse, Grameenphone Center (GPC), Grameenphone Service Desk (GPSD), info-centre and 

guest houses.
 Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease agreements for such locations are payable as follows:
 (i)   Not later than 1 year 242,291,241 251,781,202 239,828,522 248,035,702
 (ii)  Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 777,732,575 656,510,119 769,215,673 656,510,119
 (iii) Later than 5 years 550,358,799 428,937,973 550,358,799 428,937,973
  1,570,382,615 1,337,229,294 1,559,402,994 1,333,483,794

39.2 Legal and professional fees
 Legal and professional fees include fees for legal advice and other professional services received time to time from lawyers, 

auditors and other professionals.
 During the year 2011, the group paid Tk 5,261,016 (2010: Tk 2,344,784 ) to auditors for professional services in connection with 

issuance of certificate for repatriation of fees and review of interim financial statements etc.

39.3 Meeting expenses
 These include expenses for board meetings of the group amounting to Tk. 2,720,704 (2010: Tk. 3,299,672), and other meetings 

of the group (including AGM) Tk 64,882,053 (2010 : Tk 42,669,029).
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39.4 Bad debt expense
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Provision made during the year 42,622,969 251,991,051 42,622,969 251,991,051
 Recovery of bad debt during the year (27,322,273) (33,784,209) (27,322,273) (33,784,209)
 Bad debt expense 15,300,696 218,206,842 15,300,696 218,206,842

 Provision for doubtful debts has been made as per policy of the group mentioned in Note 3.5.

40 Selling and distribution expenses
 Sales, marketing and representation costs (Note 40.1) 6,555,229,928 7,318,184,187 6,555,229,928 7,318,184,187
 Advertisements 988,117,456 734,460,277 956,851,883 727,903,290
 Business development and promotional expenses 539,009,380 434,589,357 524,939,769 434,589,357
  8,082,356,764 8,487,233,821 8,037,021,580 8,480,676,834

40.1 Sales, marketing and representation costs
 This primarily represents subsidies provided by GP in connection with acquiring new subscribers.

41 Finance income/(expense), net
 Interest on long term loans - (4,463,240) - (4,463,240)
 Finance charge - lease (779,099,154) (768,429,911) (779,099,154) (768,429,911)
 Interests and service charges on short term loans (137,774,686) (2,581,366) (137,774,686) (2,581,366)
 Other finance charges (52,301,022) (80,093,566) (51,744,998) (79,881,999)
  (969,174,862) (855,568,083) (968,618,838) (855,356,516)
 Finance income 1,958,770,985 1,449,041,193 1,950,999,741 1,447,104,889
  989,596,123 593,473,110 982,380,903 591,748,373

42 Foreign exchange gain/(loss)
 Realised gain/ (loss) (140,512,723) 91,384,591 (140,401,481) 91,384,591
 Unrealised gain/ (loss) (508,039,810) 8,578,949 (511,023,366) 8,578,949
  (648,552,533) 99,963,540 (651,424,847) 99,963,540

43 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
 Disposal proceeds 118,220,726 59,884,296 118,181,872 59,884,296
 Carrying amount of the assets disposed off (25,499,763) (47,793,231) (25,405,152) (47,793,231)
  92,720,963 12,091,065 92,776,720 12,091,065

44 Income tax expenses
 Current tax expenses (Note 3.8) 15,073,255,644 12,512,235,175 15,070,341,426 12,511,509,061
 Deferred tax expenses/(income) (958,095,384) (2,304,830,605) (958,095,384) (2,304,830,605)
  14,115,160,260 10,207,404,570 14,112,246,042 10,206,678,456

45 Earnings per share
 Profit for the year (Taka) 18,891,102,082 10,705,351,440 19,052,697,592 10,579,176,467
 Weighted average  number of shares (Note 45.1) 1,350,300,022 1,350,300,022 1,350,300,022 1,350,300,022 
 Basic and diluted earnings per share (Note 3.16) 13.99 7.93 14.11 7.83

45.1 Weighted average number of ordinary shares
 The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period is the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the 

beginning of the period, adjusted by the number of ordinary shares issued during the period multiplied by a time-weighting factor.  The 
time-weighting factor is the number of days that the shares are outstanding as a proportion of the total number of days in the period.

45.2 Diluted earnings per share
 No diluted earnings per share is required to be calculated for the periods presented as GP has no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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46 Financial risk management

 The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group's risk management framework.  The 
group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the group, to set appropriate risk limits 
and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed 
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the group's activities. This note presents information about the group's 
exposure to each of the above risks, the group's objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the 
group's management of capital. The company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

  Credit risk
  Liquidity risk
  Market risk

46.1 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the group's receivables from subscribers, interconnect operators, roaming partners, dealers and 
IT service customers.

 Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

 In monitoring credit risk, debtors are grouped according to their risk profile, i.e. their legal status, financial condition, ageing profile etc. 
Accounts receivable are mainly related to the group's subscribers/customers, interconnect operators and roaming partners for provision 
of services, while other receivables represent receivable for accrued interest and receivables arising from external parties other than for 
services. The group's exposure to credit risk on accounts receivables is mainly influenced by the individual payment characteristics of 
post paid subscribers and interconnect operators. Interconnection receivables are normally realised within 3 months from when they are 
invoiced. The group employs financial clearing house to minimise credit risk involving collection of roaming receivables.

 The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position.

a) Exposure to credit risk

 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the 
reporting date was:

 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka

 Accounts receivable, net

 Receivables for interconnection 4,573,833,235 4,877,394,453 4,573,833,235 4,877,394,453

 Receivables for post paid and others 430,164,458 180,435,548 430,164,458 180,435,548

 Receivables for infrastructure sharing 311,685,379 153,522,463 311,685,379 153,522,463

 Receivables for sub lease of fibre optic network 29,062,072 22,995,771 29,062,072 22,995,771

 Others receivable for non-mobile service 17,199,287 13,597,537 5,298,091 3,311,174

  5,361,944,431 5,247,945,772 5,350,043,235 5,237,659,409

 Other receivables

 Other receivables- other than Telenor entities 655,629,774 745,552,347 893,860,251 1,048,050,175

 Receivable from other Telenor entities 260,695,250 182,467,922 260,695,250 182,467,922

  916,325,024 928,020,269 1,154,555,501 1,230,518,097

 Long term deposits - 12,594,949 - 12,594,949

 Deposit for bank guarantee 129,157,944 127,957,944 126,457,944 127,957,944

 Security deposits for utilities and services 77,353,046 60,483,786 73,321,638 60,483,786

 Short term investment 181,856,969 2,753,729,110 181,856,969 2,753,729,110

 Cash at bank 8,050,172,142 18,927,765,069 7,623,748,644 18,671,232,085

  14,716,809,556 28,058,496,899 14,509,983,931 28,094,175,380
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 Exposure to credit risk (Contd..)
 The maximum exposure to credit risk for accounts receivable as at the statement of financial position date by geographic regions 

was:
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Domestic 5,075,800,911 5,156,379,116 5,071,087,730 5,148,390,405
 Asia 103,373,043 46,331,342 103,373,043 46,331,342
 Europe 120,732,219 37,142,575 113,544,204 34,844,923
 Australia 25,303,518 1,271,770 25,303,518 1,271,770
 Americas 34,551,809 5,695,687 34,551,809 5,695,687
 Africa 2,182,931 1,125,282 2,182,931 1,125,282
  5,361,944,431 5,247,945,772 5,350,043,235 5,237,659,409

b) Ageing of receivables
i) The ageing of gross interconnection receivables as at the statement of financial position was:
 Not past due 807,439,188 708,430,082 807,439,188 708,430,082
 0-30 days past due 815,513,748 725,657,334 815,513,748 725,657,334
 31-60 days past due 668,525,928 558,026,984 668,525,928 558,026,984
 61-90 days past due 258,366,626 260,484,947 258,366,626 260,484,947
 91-180 days past due 683,144,151 495,165,272 683,144,151 495,165,272
 181-365 days past due 1,068,850,713 598,856,982 1,068,850,713 598,856,982
 over 365 days past due 490,153,290 1,749,222,710 490,153,290 1,749,222,710
  4,791,993,644 5,095,844,311 4,791,993,644 5,095,844,311

ii) The ageing of gross receivable for post paid and others as at the statement of financial position date was:
 Not past due and 0-30 days past due 169,019,171 121,714,993 169,019,171 121,714,993
 31-60 days past due 78,401,168 34,177,510 78,401,168 34,177,510
 61-90 days past due 34,172,586 17,635,416 34,172,586 17,635,416
 91-180 days past due 44,291,898 31,063,246 44,291,898 31,063,246
 181 days and above 148,662,240 30,388,984 148,662,240 30,388,984
  474,547,063 234,980,149 474,547,063 234,980,149

iii) The ageing of gross receivables for infrastructure sharing as at the statement of financial position date was:
 Not past due 205,715,835 97,472,039 205,715,835 97,472,039
 0-30 days past due 84,955,412 55,482,002 84,955,412 55,482,002
 31-60 days past due 10,428,967 568,422 10,428,967 568,422
 61-90 days past due 7,619,721 - 7,619,721 -
 91-180 days past due 455,620 - 455,620 -
 181-365 days past due 2,419,409 - 2,419,409 -
 over 365 days past due 90,415 - 90,415 -
  311,685,379 153,522,463 311,685,379 153,522,463

iv) The ageing of gross receivables for sub lease of fibre optic network as at the statement of financial position date was:
 Not past due 293,166 - 293,166 -
 0-30 days past due 8,359,316 - 8,359,316 -
 31-60 days past due 9,232,431 13,507,647 9,232,431 13,507,647
 61-90 days past due 2,796,388 3,234,482 2,796,388 3,234,482
 91-180 days past due 6,197,015 4,816,507 6,197,015 4,816,507
 181-365 days past due 708,182 4,507,074 708,182 4,507,074
 over 365 days past due 7,360,726 4,285,400 7,360,726 4,285,400
  34,947,224 30,351,110 34,947,224 30,351,110

c) Impairment losses
 Impairment losses on the above receivables were recognised as per the group policy mentioned in Note 3.5. Quantitative 

disclosure for such impairment losses has been given in Note 10.1 to Note 10.6 of these financial statements.
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 Market risk (Contd..)

ii) Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis for foreign currency expenditures

 A change of 10 basis points in foreign currencies would have increased/ (decreased) equity and profit or loss of the group by the 
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates remain constant.

 Profit or loss Equity
  10 bp increase 10 bp decrease 10 bp increase 10 bp decrease
 2011 Taka Taka Taka Taka

 Expenditures denominated in USD (1,709,768) 1,709,768 (1,709,768) 1,709,768

 Expenditures denominated in NOK (184,432) 184,432 (184,432) 184,432

 Expenditures denominated in GBP 5,966 (5,966) 5,966 (5,966)

 Expenditures denominated in EURO (70,786) 70,786 (70,786) 70,786

 Expenditures denominated in JPY (6,327) 6,327 (6,327) 6,327

 Exchange rate sensitivity (1,965,347) 1,965,347 (1,965,347) 1,965,347

 2010

 Expenditures denominated in USD (3,356,534) 3,356,534 (3,356,534) 3,356,534

 Expenditures denominated in NOK - - - -

 Expenditures denominated in GBP 5,508 (5,508) 5,508 (5,508)

 Expenditures denominated in EURO (32,183) 32,183 (32,183) 32,183

 Expenditures denominated in JPY (83,819) 83,819 (83,819) 83,819

 Exchange rate sensitivity (3,467,029) 3,467,029 (3,467,029) 3,467,029

b) Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowings. The group is not significantly exposed to 
fluctuation in interest rates as it has neither floating interest rate bearing financial liabilities nor entered into any type of derivative 
instrument in order to hedge interest rate risk as at the reporting date.

 Profile

 As at 31 December 2011, the interest rate profile of the group's interest bearing financial instruments was:
  Carrying amount
    As at As at
           31 December 2011 31 December 2010
    Taka Taka
 Fixed rate instruments

 Financial assets

      Long term deposits   - 12,594,949

      Short term investment   181,856,969 2,753,729,110

      Cash at bank   7,623,748,644 18,927,765,069

 Financial liabilities

      Finance lease obligation   5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838

      Accrued interest   226,869,648 155,699,144
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 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities of the group together with carrying amount shown in the statement of financial position 
are as follows:

 As at 31 December 2011 As at 31 December 2010
  Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Financial assets
 Assets carried at fair value
 through profit or loss - - - -

 Held to maturity assets
 Long term deposits - - 12,594,949 12,594,949
 Short term investment 181,856,969 181,856,969 2,753,729,110 2,753,729,110

 Loans and receivables
 Accounts receivable, net 5,361,944,431 5,361,944,431 5,247,945,772 5,247,945,772
 Other receivables 916,325,024 916,325,024 928,020,269 928,020,269

 Available for sale financial assets
 Deposit for bank guarantee 129,157,944 129,157,944 127,957,944 127,957,944
 Security deposit for utilities and services 77,353,046 77,353,046 60,483,786 60,483,786

 Financial liabilities
 Liabilities carried at fair value
 through profit or loss - - - -

 Liabilities carried at amortised costs
 Loans and borrowings - - - -
 Finance lease obligation 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838 5,019,805,838
 Accounts payable 10,840,334,043 N/A* 5,296,447,777 N/A*
 Payable to government and autonomous bodies 4,814,105,945 N/A* 1,944,753,714 N/A*
 VAT payable 2,699,959,350 N/A* 2,451,869,531 N/A*
 Accrued interest 226,869,648 N/A* 155,699,144 N/A*
 Deposit from agents and subscribers 455,775,978 N/A* 444,639,879 N/A*
 Other liabilities 98,549,866 N/A* 57,641,141 N/A*

 Interest rates used for determining amortised cost
 The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable were as follows:
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
 Finance lease obligations 15.00% 15.00% 15.00% 15.00%
 Short term investment 8.50%-13.75% 8.25%-11% 8.50%-13.75% 8.25%-11%
 *  Determination of fair value is not required as per the requirements of IFRS/BFRS 7 : Financial Instruments: Disclosures (ref: Para 

29). However, fair value of such instruments is not likely to be significantly different from the carrying amounts of such 
instruments.

47  Capital management

 Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. Capital consists of total equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The Board of 
Directors monitors the level of capital as well as the level of dividend to the ordinary shareholders.

 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividend, return capital to shareholders, 
issue new shares or obtain long-term debt.

 No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 
31 December 2010.

 The group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirement.
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49 Expense/expenditure and revenue in foreign currency during the year
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 CIF value of imports
  SIM card and scratch card 564,982,116 268,734,995 564,982,116 268,734,995
  Telecommunication equipment 6,100,542,456 4,795,853,024 6,100,542,456 4,795,853,024
  NERM software and other equipment 58,951,028 96,164,211 - -

 Expenditure in foreign currency
  Consultancy fee 949,647,478 1,029,465,734 817,259,881 1,029,465,734
  Consultancy fee - expatriate 594,659,938 613,259,692 594,659,938 613,259,692
  Other fee (travel and training) 33,212,941 33,184,341 33,212,941 33,184,341
  Technical know how 566,933,450 379,757,774 566,933,450 379,757,774
  International roaming cost 275,719,219 218,580,685 275,719,219 218,580,685
  Software (NERM) implementation support - 21,243,620 - -

 Foreign earnings
  Revenue from roaming partners 432,180,316 209,779,078 432,180,316 209,779,078
  IT service revenue 19,092,656 2,297,652 - -

50 Credit facilities available as at 31 December 2011
 The group enjoys both funded and non funded short term working capital facilities with 15 banks (2010: 16 banks). The non funded 

facilities include Letters of Credit (LC), Letters of Guarantee and foreign exchange forward contracts (FX Forward). The funded 
facilities include overdraft facility, short term loan and import loan. The aggregate amount of available short term working capital 
facilities is Tk 26,085 million (Mn) (2010: Tk 27,565 Mn) of which non funded limit is Tk 23,097 Mn (2010: Tk 22,039 Mn) and 
funded limit is Tk 11,978 Mn (2010: Tk 13,236 Mn).

 A detail of the total facilities is enumerated below:

(a) Standard Chartered Bank
 i) L/C facility - Tk 1,500 Mn (2010: Tk 1,500 Mn)
 ii) Overdraft / short term loan facility - Tk 1,500 Mn (2010: Tk 1,500 Mn).

(b) Citibank, N.A.
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 3,000 Mn (2010: Tk 2,800 Mn).
 ii) Overdraft/ short term loan facility -Tk 1,035 Mn (2010: Tk 2,100 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 3,000 Mn (2010: Tk 2,800 Mn).

 The short term loan and the overdraft limits are interchangeable. Total funded exposure under the short-term loan and the 
overdraft facility, however, may not exceed Tk 3,000 Mn (2010: Tk 2,100 Mn) at any point of time. 

(c) The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
 i) Sight/usance LC facility -Tk 1,600 Mn (2010: Tk 1,600 Mn).
 ii) Short term loan facility - Tk 700 Mn (2010: Tk 700 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 1,600 Mn (2010: Tk 1,600 Mn).
 iii) Overdraft facility - Tk 150 Mn (2010: Tk 150 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 1,600 Mn (2010: Tk 1,600 Mn).
 iv) Foreign exchange line - Tk 10 Mn (2010: Tk 10 Mn).

 However, combined funded exposure is limited to Tk 700 Mn (2010: Tk 700 Mn) at any point of time.

(d) Eastern Bank Limited
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 2,700 Mn (2010: Tk 2,000 Mn).
 ii) Short term loan/LTR  facility - Tk 1,000 Mn. (2010: Tk 1,000 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 2,000 Mn (2010: Tk 2,000 Mn).
 iii) Overdraft facility - Tk 100 Mn (2010: Tk 100 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 2,000 Mn (2010: Tk 2,000 Mn).
 iv) Bank guarantee - Tk 800 Mn (2010: Tk 800 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 2,000 Mn (2010: Tk 2,000 Mn).
 However, combined funded exposure is limited to Tk 1,100 Mn at any point of time.

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
ts



(e) BRAC Bank Limited
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 1,300 Mn (2010: Tk 1,300 Mn).
 ii) Overdraft/short term loan facility - Tk 900 Mn (2010: Tk 900 Mn) with inner limit of L/C Tk 1,300 Mn (2010: Tk 1,300 Mn).
 iii) Bank guarantee - Tk 1,300 Mn (2010: Tk 1,300 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 1,300 Mn (2010: Tk 1,300 Mn).

(f) Dutch-Bangla Bank Limited
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 1,600 Mn (2010: Tk 1600 Mn).
 ii) Short term loan/LTR/overdraft facility - Tk 685 Mn (2010: Tk 685 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 1,600 Mn (2010: Tk 1,600 Mn).

(g) Woori Bank
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 504 Mn (2010: Tk 414 Mn).
 ii) Overdraft facility for Tk 288 Mn (2010: Tk 206 Mn).

(h) The City Bank Limited
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 2,800 Mn (2010: Tk 660 Mn).
 ii) Overdraft/ short term loan facility - Tk 1,200 Mn ( 2010: Tk 420 Mn).
 iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk 1,080 Mn (2010: Tk 660 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 2,800 Mn (2010: Tk 660 Mn).

(i) Pubali Bank Ltd.
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 1,000 Mn (2010: Tk 1,000 Mn).
 ii) Overdraft facility - Tk 1,000 Mn (2010: Tk 1,000 Mn).

(j) Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 890 Mn (2010: Tk 890 Mn).
 ii) Overdraft facility - Tk 400 Mn (2010: Tk 650 Mn).
 iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk. 890 Mn (2010: Tk 890 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 890 Mn (2010: Tk 890 Mn).

(k) Southeast Bank Limited
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 1,400 Mn (2010: Tk 1,400 Mn).
 ii) Overdraft facility - Tk 1,400 Mn (2010: Tk 1,400 Mn).
 iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk 1,400 Mn (2010: Tk 1,400 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 1,400 Mn (2010: Tk 1,400 Mn).

(l) United Commercial Bank Ltd.
 i) Sight/usance LC facility -Tk 2,100 Mn (2010: Tk 2,100 Mn).
 ii) Overdraft/LTR facility - Tk 900 Mn (2010: Tk 900 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 2,100 Mn (2010: Tk 2,100 Mn).
 iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk 2,100 Mn (2010: Tk 2,100 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 2,100 Mn (2010: Tk 2,100 Mn).

(m) Bank Alfalah Ltd.
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 525 Mn (2010: Tk 525 Mn)
 ii) Cash finance facility - Tk 150 Mn (2010: Tk 225 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 525 Mn (2010: Tk 525 Mn).
 iii) Bank guarantee facility - Tk 300 Mn (2010: Tk 300 Mn) with inner limit of LC Tk 525 Mn (2010: Tk 525 Mn).

(n) Trust Bank Limited
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 1,200 Mn
 ii) Overdraft facility - Tk 300 Mn

(o) Premier Bank Limited
 i) Sight/usance LC facility - Tk 977.6 Mn
 ii) Overdraft facility - Tk 420 Mn (2010: Tk 660 Mn) with inner Limit of Non Funded Limit for Tk 977.6 Mn (2010: Tk 910 Mn)

 As per the approval of Board of Directors of GP, the total amount of short term credit facilities from the above banks is limited to a 
maximum outstanding limit of USD 210 million equivalent.
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 Security against short term credit facilities
 The short term credit facilities are unsecured and backed by standard charge documents as per terms and conditions set by 

respective banks and financial institutions.

51 Capital commitments
 As at the reporting date the group has the  following purchased order placed for the acquisition of capital items:
 Consolidated Separate
  2011 2010 2011 2010
  Taka Taka Taka Taka
 Purchase orders 4,591,538,463 3,982,891,459 4,227,036,267 3,918,377,435
 2G licence renewal fees 16,530,120,000 - 16,530,120,000 -

52 Contingencies
 The Company and its subsidiaries are currently, and may be from time to time, involved in a number of legal proceedings, including 

inquiries from, or discussions with, governmental authorities that are incidental to their operations. However, save as disclosed 
below and in Note 1, the Company and its subsidiaries are not currently involved in any legal or arbitration proceedings which may 
have, or have had in the 12 months preceding the date of this report, a significant effect on the financial position or profitability of 
the Company and its subsidiaries.

52.1 BTRC audit
 BTRC had an audit carried out of the information system of Grameenphone from April 2011 and issued a letter on 3 October 2011 

claiming an amount of Tk. 30,341,108,581 on various grounds. Grameenphone during and after the audit clarified to both BTRC 
and auditors appointed by BTRC that those observations were framed on wrong basis. Grameenphone disagrees with the claims 
made by BTRC and responded to the letter requesting BTRC to review the notice.  No impact has been given in the financial 
statements in this regard.

53 Other disclosures

53.1 Number of employees
 As at 31 December 2011 number of regular employees receiving remuneration of Tk. 36,000 or above per annum was 3,887 for GP 

(2010: 3,930), and 4,267  (2010: 4,286) for the group.

53.2 Comparatives
 Comparative information in the following major areas has been rearranged to conform with current period’s presentation:

 i. Accounts receivable, net
  A part of receivable for post paid and others (Note 10.2) has been reclassified as other receivable for non-mobile services 

(Note 10.5) as the receivable is related to non-mobile services.

 ii. Payable to government and autonomous bodies
  Advance receipt for bills pay service which was presented under payable to govt and autonomous bodies (Note 26) has been 

reclassified as accounts payables (Note 25 ).

 iii. Provisions
  Liability against purchase of inventories and interconnection charges has been reclassified as accounts payable under note 

25. In 2010, these amounts were presented as provisions under note 33.

 iv. Revenue
  Broad band internet revenue, which was presented as a part of internet and data revenue in 2010, has been presented 

separately in note 34.

53.3 Events after the reporting period
 The Board of Directors of GP, at its 119th meeting held on 7 February 2012, proposed BDT 6.50 per share, amounting to a total of 

BDT 8,776,950,143 as final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011, which represents 65% of the paid up capital. Total 
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 including the interim dividend @ BDT 14.00 per share of BDT 10 each thus comes to 
BDT 27,681,150,451, which is 205% of the paid up capital. These dividends are subject to final approval by th shareholders at the 
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the company.
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Grameenphone IT Ltd.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Dear Shareholders, 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, Management and myself, I welcome you all to the 2nd Annual General Meeting of 
Grameenphone IT Ltd. (GPIT). We are very delighted to place herewith the Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report together with 
the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2011 for your consideration, approval and 
adoption.

Macroeconomic Perspective

Despite the challenges in the global economy, the IT industry has continued to experience steady growth. Bangladesh has 
potentials to be one of the preferred IT outsourcing destinations for the future with its skilled work force at a very competitive 
labour cost. The market analysis indicates  that the total Bangladesh software and Information Technology Enabled Services 
(ITES) market size is USD 250 million with a steady growth of 20% for the next 2 years. Although the market is still dominated by 
hardware, more software innovation as application and development, coding, system integration and design are gradually 
becoming more pronounced. The Bangladesh IT market is fragmented and continues to embrace smaller companies that are 
engaged in casual and freelance works for the IT industry.

Regulatory Environment and Road Map

By extending the tax exemption for ITES until 2013 and broadening the definition of ITES, the IT service industry has 
received due attention from the Government. Also being the host of e-Asia 2011, Asia’s premier ICT event, and establishing 
the new Information and Communication Technology Ministry, the government has reinforced its commitment to Digital 
Bangladesh. However, poor infrastructure and lengthy regulatory processing have impeded the growth of the sector. 
Though the local industry has continued to attract positive international exposure and interest, the high bandwidth cost, 
lack of market outreach, and complex regulatory regime are the main reasons for not registering higher growth rate in 
export earnings. To make a self sufficient local ICT industry and to establish Bangladesh as an attractive outsourcing 
destination, the government has to adopt a robust plan that includes proper implementation of the current ICT policy, 
simplification of regulatory processes and supportive policies towards training and development. 

Business Summary of the Year 2011

Many changes were initiated throughout the year 2011. At the onset, a new Management Team was appointed, and the 
commercial division was strengthened towards more focused sales, customer relationship and product development.

The internal organizational processes were designed in a way that it crafts a more customer driven company, supports external 
revenues, and upholds the overall shape of a professional customer oriented IT Company. Local Focus Group Discussions were 
established and awareness workshops were arranged to assert ourselves as being part of the industry and take steps to drive 
the industry forward. At the same time, we have also realized that the potential of this company lies not just within the limits of 
Bangladesh, but across the border and hence started to create awareness on a global level.

ISO Certification

In an unprecedented accomplishment, GPIT has prevailed to qualify for ISO 27001 and ISO 20000 Certifications in the very first 
year of its commencement. While ISO 27001 is protection of customer rights and information security, the ISO 20000 
certification is ensuring quality in the processes to deliver high standards IT services. Together, they ensure a robust world class 
management system, touching all critical areas to ensure effective service delivery.  The ISO certification confirms our 
commitment to quality and adds credibility which is as a prerequisite for entering the global market.
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Our Products & Services

GPIT offers clients complete end-to-end solutions for all their IT needs.  GPIT’s own products - a logistics distribution tracking 
system CRYSTAL, end-to-end people management services, workflow integration through Archival Management System or 
Approval Management Systems are high quality solutions that add to the portfolio base for further growth. 

GPIT’s products and solutions at present are described as follows:

Global Partnership

Partnerships are vital as we develop our business in the domains such as IT Banking, Government and Enterprises. We will 
continue to serve the domains where we have demonstrated excellence, Telecommunications Industry, as our core 
competence. GPIT is looking forward for other partnership opportunities with large and medium sized companies that have 
worked with relevant portfolios and sectors for adding more value to our business. Retaining the existing partnerships and 
expanding them in a large scale will be our focus in validating and aligning our journey. Our existing partners include IBM, Dell, 
HP, Wipro, Huawei, Microsoft, Cisco and other global giants from whom GPIT leverages extensive product/solution and 
supports.  Depending on the preference of the market of price and quality, we will keep an array of options for our customers. 
That is why partner management has become very critical to move forward.  

Our Employees

GPIT continues to foster development and learning through encouraging a structured approach towards capability analysis and 
ensuring development initiatives. While the people base increased to close to 400, GPIT introduced innovative and cost 
effective solutions towards meeting its resource needs. We are utilizing “working from home” concept and flexible hour 
mechanisms which allows optimum level of productivity and efficiency for both GPIT and its employees. It built its people and 
process capacity for achieving ISO and CMMI certification and maturity alignment. It also embraced the value of strong and 
healthy culture building and fostering a capable environment for development of individuals and future leaders. We believe the 
right mix of innovative HR delivery systems, structured standardization and healthy culture building will nurture organic growth 
that would lead to a strong successful company in the coming years.

Investment Risk & Concerns

GPIT has made noteworthy efforts in identification, assessment, and prioritization of risks. Concerted actions have also been 
taken to monitor, minimize, and control the probability and/or impact of events that may trigger risks. GPIT has identified key 
risks and uncertainties, which may restrict the Company from realizing business objectives as below: 

1.    Global Recession

2.   Currency fluctuation 

3.    Regulatory vice and uncertainties 

4.    International Connectivity  

GPIT Products Integration & Managed Services
- Human Resource 

Management System (HRMS) 

- Approval Management   
System (AMS) 

- GPIT Crystal (logistics 
distribution tracking system) 

- Enterprise Resource Planning 
(ERP)

Banking & Financial

- Mobile Banking 

- Internet Banking 

- Loan Origination 
System 

Business Support 
Solution 

- ERP 

- Collaboration & 
Content 
Management 

- Middleware 

Communication

- Contact Center 

- IP Telephony 

- Video Conferencing 

- Unified 
Communications 

Infrastructure

- Server & Storage 

- Oracle Exadata, - 
Exalogic 
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We will continue to take timely measures to control the probability and/or negative impact of the risks mentioned above. We will 
also look into ways to how we can turn some of the risks into prospects.  The global recession with a strong focus on increased 
cost effectiveness and increased productivity may open opportunities for GPIT’s products and services, which are cost 
competitive in the global market.

Contribution to the National Exchequer

Grameenphone IT Ltd. paid a significant contribution to the National Exchequer in the last year. The collective contribution to 
the National Exchequer up to December 2011 was BDT 72 million.

Enhanced Value of Shareholders’ Investment: 

The Directors present the financial results of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2011 and recommend the 
appropriation as mentioned in the “Appropriation of Profit” table below:

  2011 2010

 Profit available for appropriation 126,175,141

 Profit /( Loss) during the year  (140,729,616) 126,175,141

 Total amount available for appropriation (14,554,475) 126,175,141

 Profit/(Loss) carried forward (14,554,475) 126,175,141

Dividend 

In view of accumulated loss of BDT 14,554,475 during the year up to December 31, 2011, the Directors are unable to offer any 
dividend to the Shareholders for the year 2011.

Board of Directors & Board Meetings

The composition of the Board of Directors who held office during the year is as below:

 1. Mr. Tore Johnsen

 2. Mr. Raihan Shamsi

 3. Mr. Arild Kaale

 4. Mr. Frode Stoldal  

 5. Mr. Haroon Bhatti

 6. Mr. Kazi Monirul Kabir

 7. Mr. Tanveer Mohammad

Mr. Haroon Bhatti was appointed as a Director at the 26th Board meeting on December 12, 2011 in replacement of Mr. Arnfinn 
Groven as per provision of the Articles of Association of the Company.

During 2011, a total of 13 (thirteen) Board meetings were held, which met the regulatory requirement in this respect.

Directors’ appointment & Re-appointment

With regard to the appointment, retirement and re-appointment of Directors, the Company is governed by its Articles of 
Association, the Companies Act, 1994 and other related legislations. Accordingly, the following Directors of the Board will retire 
at the Annual General Meeting. They are, however, eligible for re-appointment:

1. Mr. Raihan Shamsi 

2. Mr. Arild Kaale 

3. Mr. Haroon Bhatti
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Appointment of Auditors

The appointment, reappointment and replacement of statutory auditors for the Company are governed by the provisions of the 
Companies Act 1994. The statutory auditors of the Company, M/S Rahman Rahman Huq, Chartered Accountants, a member firm 
of KPMG, shall retire in this AGM. The Firm, being eligible, has expressed their willingness to be re-appointed. The Board 
recommends their re-appointment for the year 2012 and to continue till the next AGM at a fee of BDT 550,000 (Taka Five 
Hundred Fifty thousand only) plus applicable VAT.

Looking ahead 2012 and beyond

GPIT has set the strategies and fundamentals to continue on the journey of profitable growth. The Company will continue to 
invest in organizational development, process improvement, customer relationship and market presence. We want to be a 
driving force to build the local IT industry and to make Bangladesh a potential outsourcing destination for software 
development in collaboration with local partners. We are confident that with the current strategy, progression and steady 
growth, we will be able to reach our targets.

Acknowledgements

Members of the Board take this opportunity to express their gratitude and sincere thanks to the Shareholders for their 
continued support and guidance. 

The Board also records its appreciation for the employees at all levels for their dedicated services, sincerity, hard works and 
strong commitment, which enabled the Company to advance to what we perceive to be a sustainable growth path.

Thanking you all and with best regards.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Grameenphone IT Ltd.

Tore Johnsen
Chairman

Grameenphone IT Ltd. 

February 08, 2012
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Auditors’ Report
to the shareholders of
Grameenphone IT Ltd.

Introduction

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Grameenphone IT Ltd., which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2011 and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994, and other applicable laws and regulations. This 
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and 
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal 
control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements, prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), give a 
true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of the results of its operations and cash flows 
for the year then ended and comply with the Companies Act 1994, and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appeared from our 
examination of these books; and

c) the statement of financial position (balance sheet) and statement of comprehensive income (profit and loss account) dealt 
with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns.

Auditors
Rahman Rahman Huq
Dhaka, February 07, 2012



2011
Taka

2010
Taka

Grameenphone IT Ltd.
Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2011

Non-current assets
 Property, plant and equipment, net 4  506,945,456 176,822,402
 Intangible assets, net 5 28,084,997 -
   535,030,453 176,822,402

Current assets
 Inventories 6 23,757,854 103,488,179
 Accounts receivable 7 173,575,301 221,221,943
 Advances, deposits and prepayments 8 34,052,375 34,076,775
 Advance VAT 9 - 30,016,625
 Other receivables 10  16,536,405 1,890,705
 Cash and cash equivalents 11 426,423,498 256,572,726
   674,345,433 647,266,953
Total assets  1,209,375,886 824,089,355

Equity and liabilities

Shareholders' equity
 Share capital 12  75,000,000 75,000,000
 Accumulated profit/(loss)  (14,554,475) 126,175,141
   60,445,525 201,175,141

Non-current liabilities  - -

Current liabilities
 Advance from customers 13 392,199,338 161,032,225
 Payable for operating expenses 14 239,909,445 121,923,559
 Payable for capital expenditure 15 259,820,110 176,839,206
 Income tax provision 16 1,226,963 532,484
 Provisions 17 234,377,762 158,052,956
 VAT liability 9 3,820,572 -
 Other current liabilities 18  17,576,171 4,533,784
   1,148,930,361 622,914,214
Total equity and liabilities  1,209,375,886 824,089,355

The annexed notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

NotesAssets

Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

As per our report of same date

Auditors
Dhaka, February 07, 2012
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Grameenphone IT Ltd.
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011 

Revenue 19 1,176,717,464 642,007,224 

Cost of services rendered 20 (884,624,503) (315,086,476)
Gross profit  292,092,961 326,920,748

Operating expenses
 General and administrative expenses 21 (425,520,025) (201,744,230)
 Selling and distribution expenses 22 (14,420,111) -
   (439,940,136) (201,744,230)
Operating profit/(loss)  (147,847,175) 125,176,518

Finance income, net 23 7,215,220 1,724,737
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 24 (55,757) -
Foreign exchange gain  2,872,314 -
   10,031,777 1,724,737
Profit/(loss) before income tax  (137,815,398) 126,901,255
Income tax expenses 3.8 (2,914,218) (726,114)
Profit/(loss) for the year/period  (140,729,616) 126,175,141

Other comprehensive income  - -
Total comprehensive income  (140,729,616) 126,175,141

The annexed notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

28 January to
 31 December 2010 

 Taka 

1 January to
 31 December 2011 

 Taka 
Notes

Chairman Director Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary

As per our report of same date

Auditors
Dhaka, February 07, 2012



Grameenphone IT Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Issue of shares  75,000,000 - 75,000,000
Profit for the period - 126,175,141 126,175,141
Other comprehensive income - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2010 75,000,000 126,175,141 201,175,141

Loss for the year - (140,729,616) (140,729,616)
Other comprehensive income - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2011 75,000,000 (14,554,475) 60,445,525

The annexed notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Total
Taka

Accumulated
profit/(loss)

Taka

Share
capital

Taka
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28 January to
 31 December 2010 

 Taka 

1 January to
 31 December 2011 

 Taka 

Grameenphone IT Ltd.
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from performance of services  1,455,531,219 611,038,596
Payment to suppliers, contractors and others  (334,446,886) (170,368,140)
Payroll and other payments to employees  (590,195,025) (260,628,837)
Finance income received  7,771,244 1,936,304
Finance costs paid  (556,024) (211,567)
Income tax paid  (2,219,739) (193,630)
Net cash flow from operating activities  535,884,789 181,572,726

Cash flows from investing activities:

Payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (353,069,121) -
Payment for acquisition of intangible assets  (13,003,750) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  38,854 -
Net cash used in investing activities  (366,034,017) -

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of shares  - 75,000,000
Net cash flow from financing activities  - 75,000,000

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents  169,850,772 256,572,726

Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents  256,572,726 -
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents  426,423,498 256,572,726

The annexed notes 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Grameenphone IT Ltd.
Notes to the financial statements
as at and for year ended 31 December 2011

1. Reporting entity

 Grameenphone IT Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as "GPIT/the company") is a private limited company incorporated in 
Bangladesh under the Companies Act 1994 with an authorised share capital of Tk 7,500,000,000 divided into 
75,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk 100 each. The company was registered on 28 January 2010.  The company is a wholly 
owned subsidiary  of Grameenphone Ltd. ("Grameenphone"/"GP"). Registered office of the company is GPHOUSE, 
Bashundhara, Baridhara, Dhaka-1229, Bangladesh.

 The company launched its commercial operation on 1 April 2010.

 The purpose of this company is to provide IT services to Grameenphone Ltd. and other external parties.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the 
Companies Act 1994 and other applicable laws in Bangladesh.

 These financial statements have been authorised for issue by the board of directors on February 07, 2012.

2.2 Basis of measurement

 Except for the employee benefit plan, which is measured on the basis of actuarial valuation, these financial statements 
have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

 These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka (Taka/Tk/BDT) which is both functional currency and 
presentation currency of the company. The amounts in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Taka.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

 The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is recognised in 
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies that have significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements  are described in the following notes:

 Note 16 Income taxes

 Note 17 Provisions

 Note 19 Revenue

2.5 Comparative information

 Comparative information presented in these financial statements covers the period from 28 January 2010 (the date of 
incorporation) to 31 December 2010. Accordingly, comparative figures for the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and related notes are not entirely comparable.
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3. Significant accounting policies

 Accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

  (a) Recognition and measurement

 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any.

 The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable 
taxes, after deducting trade discount and rebates, and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner. Purchased software that is integral to the 
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

 When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate 
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

  (b) Subsequent costs

 The cost of replacing or upgrading an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the 
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the item will flow to the company and its cost can 
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the day to day 
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

  (c) Depreciation

 No depreciation is charged on capital work in progress.

 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
each item of property, plant and equipment. For addition to property, plant and equipment, depreciation is charged from 
the date of capitalisation up to the month immediately preceding the month of disposal. Depreciation method, useful lives 
and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. The estimated useful lives of the items 
of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

   2011 2010

 Computer and other IT equipment 4 years 4 years

 Vehicles  4 years -

 Furniture and fixtures 3 years -

  (d) Gains or losses on disposal

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the disposal 
proceeds with the carrying amounts and are recognised net.

  (e) Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work in progress consists of acquisition costs of  plant, machinery, capital components of other equipment and 
related installation costs incurred until the date placed in service. In case of purchase of components, capital work in 
progress is recognised when risks and rewards associated with such assets are transferred to the company.

3.2 Intangible assets

  (a) Recognition and measurement

 Intangible assets that are acquired by the company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and  accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are recognised when all the conditions for 
recognition as per BAS 38: Intangible assets are met. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, import 
duties and non-refundable taxes and any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use.
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  (b) Subsequent costs

 Subsequent costs are capitalised only when they increase the future economic benefits  embodied in the specific asset to 
which they relate. All other costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

  (c) Amortisation

 Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, from 
the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

   2011 2010

 Software  3 years -

 Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed yearly and adjusted, if appropriate.

  (d) Derecognition

 An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from its continued use. 
Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the disposal proceeds with the carrying amounts and are 
recognised net.

3.3 Financial instruments

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.

3.3.1 Financial assets

 Financial assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables and 
deposits.

 The company initially recognises receivables on the date they are originated.  All other financial assets are recognised 
initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the transaction. The company 
derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the cash flows from the asset expire, 
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

  (a) Accounts receivable

 Accounts receivable represents the amounts due from customers for IT related services, and includes both billed and 
unbilled portion of such services at the reporting date. Accounts receivable is stated net of provision for doubtful debts., if 
any.

  (b) Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand and balances with various banks. Bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand, form an integral part of the company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and 
cash equivalents.

  (c) Other receivables

 Other receivables includes reimbursable expenses from Grameenphone, Telenor Consult AS, Telenor Start II AS, and others.

  (d) Deposits

 This represents amounts deposited in connection with participation in tenders as earnest money and/or bank guarantee. 
The amounts are refundable upon fulfilment of performance conditions if contract is awarded. For unsuccessful bids, the 
amounts are refundable immediately.
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3.3.2 Financial liabilities

 Financial liabilities are recognised initially on the transaction date at which the company becomes a party to the 
contractual obligations arising from the past events and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefit. The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations 
are discharged or cancelled or exp

 Financial liabilities include payable for operating expenses, payable for capital expenditure, provisions, advance from 
customers and other current liabilities.

3.4 Impairment

  (a) Financial assets

 Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. 
Financial assets are impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of 
the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be 
estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor, 
indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, etc.

  (b) Non-financial assets

 An asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company assesses yearly whether there 
is any indication that an asset or a Cash Generating Unit (CGU) may be impaired.  If any such indication exists, the company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or CGU. The recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is the higher of its fair 
value less costs to sell and its value in use. Carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount by 
recognising an impairment loss, if and only if, the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount. 
Impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment 
loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

3.5 Revenue

 Revenues are measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discount and sales related taxes 
(e.g. VAT). Revenues are reported gross with separate recording of expenses to vendors of products or services. However, 
when the company acts only as an agent or broker on behalf of suppliers of products or services, revenues are reported on 
a net basis. Revenues of Grameenphone IT Ltd. arise from:

  (a) Sale of software

 Revenue from the sale of software is recognised when significant risks and rewards associated with the software is 
transferred and the entity retains neither significant managerial involvement nor effective control over the software. The 
other criteria for revenue recognition, i.e. availability of reliable measure for revenue and associated costs and probable 
flow of economic benefits to the entity must also be met.

 Accordingly delivery of a software is not considered complete and revenue is not recognised when the software is shipped 
subject to installation and the installation is a significant part of the contract which has not yet been completed by the 
company.

  (b) IT service revenue

 Revenue from IT service is recognised on a percentage of completion basis. Percentage of completion of service is 
determined upon periodic review and usually evidenced by work completion certificate. Revenue is recognised only when 
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.

  (c) Revenue from Construction contracts

 When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue from construction contracts is recognized 
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period. The stage of completion 
of a contract is determined in a variety of ways depending on the nature of the contract. The entity uses the method that 
measures reliably the work performed. The methods include cost-to-cost, survey of work performed and completion of 
physical proportion of the contract work.
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 If circumstances arise that may change the original estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion, 
estimates are revised. These revisions may result in increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs and are reflected 
in the profit or loss for the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by management.

 When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent of 
recoverable contract costs incurred and contract costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred. An expected loss on the construction contract is recognized as an expense immediately.

3.6 Foreign currency transactions

 Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the books at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the date of statement of financial position are 
translated into Bangladesh taka at the rate of exchange prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in 
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial 
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at 
the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on 
translating monetary items at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss as per BAS 21: The Effects of 
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

3.7 Inventories

 Cost of inventories include expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories,  and other costs incurred in bringing them to 
their existing location and condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business  less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

 Grameenphone IT Ltd. measures service related inventories at the lower of cost or net realizable value.  Inventory costs 
consist primarily of cost for the personnel directly engaged in providing the service, including supervisory personnel, other 
direct costs and attributable overheads.

 Cost of software inventory for customers is specifically identified on a item by item basis since these items are not 
interchangeable with each other.

3.8 Income tax expense

 Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

 As per the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance 1984 (ITO), IT enabled services are subject to tax exemption until 30 June 
2013. However, income from sources other than IT enabled services are taxable as per Income Tax Ordinance 1984. 
Applicable income tax for such other income is 37.5%. as per Finance Act 2011.

3.9 Employee benefits

 The company maintains both defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees.

(a) Defined contribution plan (provident fund)

 The company contributes 10% of basic salary of all eligible permanent employees to a provident fund (defined contribution 
plan) constituted under an irrevocable trust, while the employees also contribute an equal amount to the fund as per the 
rules of the trust deed.

 The company recognises contribution to defined contribution plan as an expense when an employee has rendered services 
in exchange for such contribution. The legal and constructive obligation is limited to the amount it agrees to contribute to 
the fund.
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(b) Defined benefit plan (gratuity)

 The company provides retirement benefit in the form of gratuity payments determined by reference to employees' earnings 
and years of service to each eligible employees at the time of retirement/separation. Gratuity obligation at the reporting 
date is measured on the basis of actuary valuation.

(c) Short term employee benefits

 Short term employee benefits include salary, bonuses, leave encashment. Obligations for such benefits are measured on 
an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

3.10 Provisions

 A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the company has a legal or constructive obligation as 
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured at the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the date of statement of financial position. Where the effect of time 
value of money is material, the amount of provision is measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be 
required to settle the obligation.

3.11 Events after the reporting period

 Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the company's position at the date of 
statement of financial position or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the 
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed when material.
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2011
Taka

2010
Taka

2011
Taka

2010
Taka

6 Inventories
 Inventories include software and hardware for different projects for GP and other customers.

 Software/service inventories  1,178,506 103,488,179
 IT hardware  22,579,348 -
   23,757,854 103,488,179

6.1 Movement of inventories  Software/service
   inventories IT hardware
   Taka Taka
 Balance as at 28 January 2010  - -
 Addition during 2010  103,488,179 -
 Issue during 2010  - -
 Balance as at 31 December 2010  103,488,179 -
 Addition during 2011  144,864,768 47,979,931
 Issue during 2011  (247,174,441) (25,400,583)
 Balance as at 31 December 2011  1,178,506 22,579,348

7 Accounts receivable
   
   
 IT services to Grameenphone  161,674,105 217,400,297
 IT services to other Telenor entities  5,682,397 2,297,652
 IT services to other external customers  6,218,799 1,523,994
   173,575,301 221,221,943

 As at the statement of financial position date, the above receivable does not include any receivable from:
     (a)  the directors and other officers of the company; and
     (b)  firms or private limited companies respectively in which  any director of the Company is a partner, director or member.

 The entire amount of the above receivable is considered good. However, no security was received against the amount.
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2011
Taka

2010
Taka

8 Advances, deposits and prepayments

 Advances
 Advance to employees (Note 8.1)  3,295,716 9,048,385

 Deposits
 Deposit for bank guarantee  2,700,000 -
 Security deposits  4,031,408 -
   6,731,408 -

 Prepayments
 Group insurance premium  4,955,131 3,631,615
 Software implementation support fees (Note 8.2)  - 21,243,620
 Service maintenance fees  19,070,120 153,155
   24,025,251 25,028,390
   34,052,375 34,076,775

8.1 Advance to employees
 Advance to employees represents advances made to employees for foreign travel, training, meeting, workshop, presentation etc in. No 

advances were made to the shareholder directors during the year.

8.2 Software implementation support fees
 This represents the amount paid in advance to Oracle Corporation Singapore Pte. Ltd. as fees for implementation support services.

9 Advance VAT/VAT liability
 This represents balance of VAT current account maintained with NBR.

10 Other receivables
 Other receivables include receivable for reimbursable expenses from Telenor Consult AS, Grameenphone and others.

11 Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash in hand  - 39,742
 Cash at bank  426,423,498 256,532,984
   426,423,498 256,572,726

As at the reporting date the company did not have any restriction on its cash balances.

G
PI

T 
- 

N
ot

es
 to

 th
e 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
ts



2011
Taka

2010
Taka

2011
Taka

2010
Taka

12 Share capital

 Authorised:
 75,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 100 each  7,500,000,000 7,500,000,000

 Issued, subscribed and paid-up:
 750,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 100 each  75,000,000 75,000,000

 Shareholding position of the company as at 31 Decemer 2011 was as follows:

 Grameenphone Ltd. 749,999 99.9999% 74,999,900
 Mr. Raihan Shamsi 1 0.0001% 100
  750,000 100% 75,000,000

13 Advance from customers

 Advance from Grameenphone:
                Service maintenance fee  391,114,950 -
                NERM projects  - 161,032,225
   391,114,950 161,032,225
 Advance from external customers  1,084,388 -
   392,199,338 161,032,225

14 Payable for operating expenses
 Payable to Grameenphone (Note 14.1)  121,527,655 88,209,424
 Payable to others:
                Service maintenance fees  3,388,873 11,168,780
                Office rent  - 1,248,500
                Office running expenses  7,042,118 18,700,373
                Employee travel and training expenses  1,659,872 1,373,688
                Consultancy and professional fees  102,608,445 -
                Other operating expenses  3,682,482 1,222,794
   118,381,790 33,714,135
   239,909,445 121,923,559

14.1 Payable to Grameenphone
 This represents the amount payable to Grameenphone on account of rent for head office at  GPHOUSE Tk. 46,958,869 (2010: Tk. 

17,132,616) and other expenses paid by GP on behalf of GPIT.

15 Payable for capital expenditure
 Payable to Grameenphone (Note 15.1)  127,337,217 168,631,953
 Payable to others  132,482,893 8,207,253
   259,820,110 176,839,206

15.1 Payable to Grameenphone
 This represents the cost of computer and other IT equipment transferred from GP to GPIT. The purchase process was facilitated by GP in 

terms of execution of the transaction (including arrangement with vendors, inspection, etc.).

 Amount 
Taka

 Percentage 
 of holding  No. of shares 
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2011
Taka

2010
Taka

16 Income tax provision

 Opening balance  532,484 -
 Provision made during the year/period  2,914,218 726,114
   3,446,702 726,114
 Advance income tax paid  (2,219,739) (193,630)
 Closing balance  1,226,963 532,484

17 Provisions

 Short term employee benefits (Note 17.1)  95,852,719 66,190,077
 IT service maintenance charge (Note 17.2)  109,535,466 75,107,867
 Training and travel expenses  550,657 14,409,948
 Audit fee  525,000 525,000
 Consultancy and professional fees  22,960,498 -
 Other operating expenses (Note 17.3)  4,953,422 1,820,064
   234,377,762 158,052,956

17.1 Short term employee benefits
 This represents provision for employee salary, bonus and leave encashment outstanding at the reporting  date.

17.2 IT service maintenance charge
 This represents mainly provision for IT maintenance service, software support service and other IT related services received by the company 

during 2011. The amount includes Tk 1,902,900 (2010: Tk. 47,931,921) payable as a reimbursement of IT service cost borne by GP on behalf 
of GPIT.

17.3 Other operating expenses
 Provision for other operating expenses includes provisions for office running expenses, advertising and promotional expenses.

18 Other current liabilities
 Other current liabilities include payables to Telenor, taxes deducted at source from employees and suppliers etc.
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19 Revenue

 IT service revenue from:
 Grameenphone Ltd (Note 19.1)  1,123,863,435 638,384,360
 Other Telenor entities  16,973,803 2,297,652
 External customers  35,880,226 1,325,212
   1,176,717,464 642,007,224

19.1 IT service revenue from Grameenphone
 This represents the amount of service charge earned against IT services provided to Grameenphone Ltd. These services include 

maintenance of IT equipment, maintenance of billing, financial and other software, IT project implementation, supervision and other 
related services.

20 Cost of services rendered
 Personnel expenses (Note 20.1)  377,495,728 231,972,486
 Service maintenance fees  158,871,856 83,097,186
 Cost of IT support materials  272,575,024 -
 Depreciation and amortisation  75,681,895 16,804
   884,624,503 315,086,476

20.1 Personnel expenses
 This includes salary, bonus, contribution to provident fund and other employee related expenses. Personnel expenses were allocated to 

cost of service rendered and general and administrative expenses in the following manner:

 Cost of service rendered  377,495,728 231,972,486
 General and administrative expenses  242,361,939 85,798,043
   619,857,667 317,770,529

21 General and administrative expenses
 Personnel expenses (Note 20.1)  242,361,939 85,798,043
 Legal and consultancy fees  52,565,369 31,306,142
 Statutory audit fee  525,000 525,000
 Office rent  36,655,548 28,534,815
 Utility and maintenance  7,983,706 5,447,082
 Vehicle running expenses  24,003,898 10,408,628
 Office stationery, printing materials, etc.  6,430,858 11,776,435
 Entertainment expenses  612,588 560,320
 Advertisement, travel, training, and others  42,522,189 27,387,765
 Depreciation  11,858,930 -
   425,520,025 201,744,230

22 Selling and distribution expenses
 These represent expenses incurred in connection with corporate branding and other promotional activities.

23 Finance income, net
 Finance income  7,771,244 1,936,304
 Finance expense  (556,024) (211,567)
   7,215,220 1,724,737

Finance income represents interest earned on bank deposits, while finance expense represents mainly bank charges, LC related charges, etc.

24 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
 Disposal proceeds  38,854 -
 Carrying amount of the assets disposed off  (94,611) -
   (55,757) -

 28 January to 
 31 December 2010 

 Taka 

 1 January to 
 31 December 2011 

 Taka 
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25 Financial risk management

 The company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk management framework. 
Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company's 
activities. The company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

  Credit risk
  Liquidity risk
  Market risk

25.1 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the company's receivables.

 Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. As at 31 December 2011, 
substantial part of the receivables are those from Grameenphone and other Telenor entities and subject to insignificant credit risk. Risk 
exposures from other financial assets, i.e. Cash at bank and other external receivables are also nominal.

(a) Exposure to credit risk

 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 
was:

 Accounts receivable:
     IT services to Grameenphone  161,674,105 210,935,580
    IT services to other Telenor entities  5,682,397 8,762,369
    IT services to other external customers  6,218,799 1,523,994
   173,575,301 221,221,943

 Other receivables  16,536,405 1,890,705
 Deposits  6,731,408 -
 Cash at bank  426,423,498 256,532,984
   449,691,311 258,423,689
   623,266,612 479,645,632

 The maximum exposure to credit risk for accounts receivable as at the reporting date by geographic region was:

 Domestic  166,387,286 218,924,291
 Foreign  7,188,015 2,297,652 
   173,575,301 221,221,943
(b) Ageing of receivables
 The aging of gross accounts receivable as at the statement of financial position date was as follows:

 0-90 days past due  155,129,776 221,221,943
 90-180 days past due  5,531,215 -
 over 180 days past due  12,914,310 -
   173,575,301 221,221,943
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25.2 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The company's approach to 
managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company's 
reputation. Typically, the company ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, 
including financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial 
obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

 In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the parent company in the form of short term financing.
 The carrying amount of financial liabilities represent the maximum exposure to liquidity risk. The maximum exposure to liquidity risk as at 31 

December was:
  2011 2010
  Carrying amount Maturity period Carrying amount Maturity period
  Taka Months Taka Months
 Payable for operating expenses 239,909,445 6 months or less 121,923,559 6 months or less
 Payable for capital expenditure 259,820,110 -do- 176,839,206 -do-
 Other current liabilities 17,576,171 -do- 4,533,784 -do-
  517,305,726  303,296,549

25.3 Market risk
 Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the company's income 

or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters.

(a) Currency risk
 The company is exposed to currency risk on certain revenues and purchases such as IT service revenue from foreign customers and import 

of IT equipment, software and software support services.
 The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts (in Taka):

  As at 31 December 2011
  USD NOK EUR
 Foreign currency denominated assets
 Accounts receivable 5,682,397 - 1,505,618
 Other receivables 10,595,051 - -
 Cash at bank 607,645 - -
  16,885,093 - 1,505,618

 Foreign currency denominated liabilities
 Payable to other Telenor entities (11,583,657) (111,281,108) -
 Trade and other payables for expenses - - -
  (11,583,657) (111,281,108) -
 Net exposure 5,301,436 (111,281,108) 1,505,618

  As at 31 December 2010
  USD NOK EUR
 Foreign currency denominated assets 2,297,652 - -
 Foreign currency denominated liabilities - - -

 The following exchange rates have been applied:
  Exchange rate as at
  31 Dec 2011 31 Dec 2010
  Taka Taka
 US Dollar (USD) 82.40 71.40
 Norwegian Kroner (NOK) 15.64 13.85
 EURO (EUR) 108.03 96.94
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 Currency risk (Contd…)

 Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis-

 An increase/(decrease) of 10 basis points in exchange rates would have increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts 
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates remain constant.

  Profit or loss  Equity

  10 bp increase 10 bp decrease 10 bp increase 10 bp decrease

 2011 Taka Taka Taka Taka

 Expenditures denominated in:

 USD 5,301 (5,301) 5,301 (5,301)

 NOK (111,281) 111,281 (111,281) 111,281

 EURO 1,506 (1,506) 1,506 (1,506)

  (104,474) 104,474 (104,474) 104,474

 2010

 Expenditures denominated in:

 USD (115,123) 115,123 (115,123) 115,123

 NOK - - -  -

 EURO - - -  -

  (115,123) 115,123 (115,123) 115,123

(b) Interest rate risk

 The only interest bearing financial instrument for the company is the short notice deposit (SND) account maintained by the company with 
its banks. Historically, interest rates for such instruments show little fluctuation. Interest rate risk for the company is therefore insignificant.

26 Related party disclosures

 During the period, the company entered into a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business. The names of 
the related parties and nature of these transactions have been set out below in accordance with the provisions of BAS 24: Related Party 
Disclosures.

 Related party transactions during the year/period

 Name of related parties
 and nature of relationship Nature of transaction 

   

 Grameenphone Ltd. Revenue from IT services 856,328,939 633,428,614

 (parent company) Sale of software 267,534,496 -

  Office rent 29,826,253 17,132,616

 Telenor Broadcast Holding AS Revenue from IT service 6,068,558 2,297,652

 Telenor Serbia Revenue from IT service 9,327,210 -

 Telenor Start II AS Cell Bazaar revenue sharing 1,578,035 665,746

 Telenor Consult AS Consultancy expenses 102,740,233 -
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 Related party disclosures (Contd...)

 Receivable from/(payable to) related parties

 Name of related parties  
 and nature of relationship Nature of transaction 

 Grameenphone Ltd. Receivable for IT services 161,674,105 210,935,580

 (parent company) Receivable for reimbursable expenses 3,999,110 -

  Advance received (391,114,950) (161,032,225)

  Liabilities for operating expenses (76,471,686) (71,076,808)

  Office rent payable (46,958,869) (17,132,616)

  Payable for capital expenditure (127,337,217) (168,631,953)

 Telenor Broadcast Holding AS Receivable for IT services - 2,297,652

  Other payables (824,000) -

 Telenor Start II AS Receivable for cell Bazaar revenue sharing 1,942,244 -

  Payable for cell Bazaar revenue sharing (710,395) (665,746)

 Telenor Serbia Receivable for IT services 5,581,187 -

 Telenor ASA Receivable for IT services 101,210 -

 Telenor Consult AS Payable for consultancy (102,605,001) -

  Other receivable 10,595,051 -

26.1 Key management personnel compensation

   

   

 Short-term employee benefits (salary and other allowances) 124,667,722 113,146,296

 Post employment benefits (provident fund, gratuity, etc.) 15,981,060 8,060,965

 Other long-term benefits  2,096,025 3,566,944

   142,744,807 124,774,205

 Key management personnel includes employees of the rank of Deputy General Manager (DGM), DGM equivalent and above.

27 (Expenses)/(expenditures) and revenue in foreign currency during the year/period

 CIF value of imports:

      Capital inventory  (4,293,661) (96,164,211)

      Other operating inventory  (54,657,367) (21,243,620)

 Consultancy expenses  (132,387,597) -

 IT service revenue  19,092,656 2,297,652

28 Capital commitments

 As at 31 December 2011, Grameenphone IT Ltd had a capital commitment of Tk. 364,502,196 (2010: Tk 64,514,024) for purchase of IT 
equipment, installation of such equipment and other implementation services.

29 Other disclosures

29.1 As at 31 December 2011, number of regular employees receiving remuneration of Tk. 36,000 or above per annum was 386 (2010: 356).

29.2 Events after the reporting period

 There was no event after the reporting period that requires either disclosure of or adjustment to these financial statements.
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Useful Information for Shareholders
1. General
 Authorized Capital : BDT 40,000,000,000

 Issued and Fully Paid-up Capital : BDT 13,503,000,220  

 Class of Shares : Ordinary Shares of BDT 10.00 each

 Voting Rights :  One vote per Ordinary Share

2. Stock Exchange Listing
 The Ordinary Shares of the Company are listed in the Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. Company trading code is 

[GP].

3. Distribution Schedule of the Shares as on December 31, 2011 

4. Dividend

 * In 2008, we capitalized a portion of our retained earnings through the issuance of bonus shares. The issuance was approved by our shareholders at the 
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of shareholders on July 15, 2009 and subsequently by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

      Range of Shareholdings  Number of Shareholders Total Number of Shares Percentage

001  to 500 

501 to 5,000

5,001 to 10,000 

10,001 to 20,000

20,001 to 30,000 

30,001 to 40,000 

40,001 to 50,000 

50,001 to 100,000

100,001 to 1,000,000

1,000,001 to 1,000,000,000 

Total 

68,470

16,547

1,099

524

141

82

46

89

93

14

87,105

15,227,428

23,941,792

7,980,838

7,324,730

3,458,975

2,849,538

2,118,778

6,403,346

26,703,195

1,254,291,402

1,350,300,022

1.13%

1.77%

0.59%

0.54%

0.26%

0.21%

0.16%

0.47%

1.98%

92.89%

100%

2011

2010

2009

2008

In 2008*

2007

65% (Proposed Final Dividend)

140 % (Interim Dividend)

85 % (Final Dividend)

35 % (Interim Dividend)

60%

13%

400%

62%

6.50

14.00

8.50

3.50

6.00

0.13

-

26.66

10.00

10.00

10.00

10.00

10.00

1.00

-

43.00

Cash

Cash

Cash

Cash

Cash

Cash

Bonus Share

Cash

For the Year Dividend Rate Dividend TypeDividend Per
Share (BDT)

Par Value
Per Share (BDT)
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5. GP Share Performance at Stock Exchanges
 I.  Monthly Open, Close, High and Low share price and volume of the Company’s Shares traded at Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. 

(DSE) during the year 2011:

 Note:
 a. The highest share price of Grameenphone Ltd. at Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE) was BDT 259.0 in January 2011 and the lowest share price 

was BDT 135.8 in October 2011.

 II. Monthly Open, Close, High and Low share price and volume of the Company’s Shares traded at Chittagong Stock 

Exchange Ltd. (CSE) during the year 2011: 

 Note:
 a. The highest share price of Grameenphone Ltd. at Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE) was BDT 257.0 in January 2011 and the lowest share 

price was BDT 136.5 in October 2011.

January’11

February’11

March’11

April’11

May’11

June’11

July’11

August’11

September’11

October’11

November’11

December’11

Total Shares traded during the year

248.9

239

148

175

155.9

148.1

166

188.6

180.4

165

163

165

259

242

192

177

159

165

219

193.4

182.5

167.9

178

166.2

205

136.2

142.1

151.5

138

137.9

160.4

171.1

154.2

135.8

146.5

153

237.3

139.9

173.9

157.2

148.50

163.9

189.6

179.7

163.6

159.3

164.2

163.5

21,532,600

17,862,600

19,178,400

12,032,400

7,446,000

14,050,400

37,714,400

13,864,600

9,636,200

15,666,800

14,894,600

8,372,600

192,251,600

January’11

February’11

March’11

April’11

May’11

June’11

July’11

August’11

September’11

October’11

November’11

December’11

Total Shares traded during the year

246.3

240

144

173.5

157.3

148.8

163.5

190

179.8

163.5

163.5

163.8

257

243

193

176.8

160

165

220

193.8

182

167.5

171.6

165

200.1

137

142

151.1

138

138

160

171.1

154

136.5

147.4

153.9

236.8

140.4

173.5

157.3

148.80

163.5

189.8

179.8

163.5

157.7

163.8

164

5,341,800

4,170,200

4,906,200

2,467,800

1,902,000

2,429,800

5,045,400

1,987,000

1,581,800

3,178,800

4,717,600

2,538,012

40,266,412
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Close
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III.  Quarterly high-low price history of the Company’s share for the year 2011

IV.  GP Share Price Trend Year wise

V.  GP Share Price Performance in DSE 2011

6. Subsidiary Company

 Name of the Company Holding Activity

 Grameenphone IT Ltd. 100% IT Company
 (The Grameenphone IT Ltd. was incorporated on January 28, 2010)

6. Credit Rating
 The Company’s credit rating was reaffirmed by Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Ltd. (CRAB) on January 05, 2012.

8. Company Website
 Anyone can get information regarding Company’s activities, products & services or can view Annual Report 2011 at 

www.grameenphone.com. 

9. Investor Relations
 Institutional investors, security analysts and other members of the professional financial community requiring additional 

financial information can visit the Investor Relations section of the Company website: www.grameenphone.com

10. Shareholder Services
 If you have any queries relating to your shareholding, please contact at 01711555888 or mail to GP Share Office at 

shareoffice@grameenphone.com. 

DSE CSE

High  Low  High  Low
(BDT) (BDT) (BDT) (BDT)

During Quarter Ended

31-Mar-11

30-Jun-11

30-Sep-11

31-Dec-11

259.0

177.0

219.0

178.0

136.2

137.9

154.2

135.8

257.0

176.8

220.0

171.6

137.0

138.0

154.0

136.5

DSE CSE

2011 2010 2011 2010

Highest Price (BDT) 259.0 395.0 257.0 396.5

Lowest Price (BDT) 135.8 187.0 136.5 188.7

Long Term Short Term
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Grameenphone Ltd.
Registered Office: GPHouse, Bashundhara, Baridhara, Dhaka-1229

Share Office: Ardent Tower, Plot#9, Road#113/A, Gulshan-2, Dhaka-1212

Notice of the 15th Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 15th Annual General Meeting of Grameenphone Ltd. will be held on Tuesday, April 10, 2012 at 
10:00 am at Bangabandhu International Conference Centre (BICC), Agargaon, Sher-E-Bangla Nagar, Dhaka-1207 to transact 
the following businesses:

AGENDA
1. Consideration and adoption of the Directors’ Report and the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year 

ended December 31, 2011 together with the Auditors’ Report thereon. 

2. Declaration of Dividend for the year ended December 31, 2011 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

3. Election/Re-election of Directors.

4. Appointment of Auditors and fixation of their remuneration.

  By order of the Board of Directors

  Sd/-
 Hossain Sadat
March 13, 2012  Company Secretary

Notes:
• Members whose names appeared on the Members/Depository Register as on “Record Date” i.e. February 19, 2012 are eligible to attend 

the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and receive dividend.

• A Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM may appoint a Proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead.  

• The “Proxy Form”, duly filled and stamped at Tk. 8 must be deposited at the Company’s Share Office located at Ardent Tower, Plot #9, 

Road #113/A, Gulshan-2, Dhaka-1212 not  later than 72 hours before commencement of the AGM.

• Members/Proxies are requested to record their entry in the AGM well in time on April 10, 2012. The registration counter will open at 8:00 

am on the AGM date.

• In case of non-receiving of Annual Report 2011 of the Company sent through courier, Members may collect the same from the Company’s 

Share Office within April 09, 2012. No additional Annual Report will be distributed at AGM venue. Annual Report will also be posted on the 

Investor Relations section of the Compony’s website: www.grameenphone.com.

• Members are requested to submit to the Company’s Share Office on or before April 01, 2012, their written option to receive dividend. In 

case of non-submission of such option within the stipulated time, the dividend will be paid off as deemed appropriate by the Company. 

• Grameenphone is concerned about the environment and utilizes natural resources in a sustainable way. We request the members to 

update their email address and contact number (mobile/fixed phone) with their respective Depository Participant (DP) for quicker and 

easier communication. Such cooperation will help conserve paper and minimize the impact on the environment.

xÿJKjf ßv~JrPyJøJrmOPªr xh~ ImVKfr \jq \JjJPjJ pJPóZ ßp, IJxjú mJKwtT xJiJre xnJ~

ßTJj k´TJr CkyJr/UJmJr/ßTJj irPjr Tákj k´hJPjr mqm˙J gJTPm jJÇ



Grameenphone Ltd.
Registered Office: GPHouse, Bashundhara, Baridhara, Dhaka-1229

Attendance Slip

I/We do hereby record my/our attendance at the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on Tuesday, April 10, 
2012 at 10:00 am at Bangabandhu International Conference Center (BICC), Agargaon, Sher-e-Bangla Nagar, Dhaka-1207.

  Signature Verified by

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Signature of the Member/Proxy Authorised Signatory of the Company

Note:  Please present this Attendance Slip at the registration counter on the AGM date. 

Grameenphone Ltd.
Registered Office: GPHouse, Bashundhara, Baridhara, Dhaka-1229

Proxy Form

I/We . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  being Member of Grameenphone Ltd. do hereby appoint 
Mr/Ms . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   
as my/our PROXY to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 
Tuesday, April 10, 2012 at 10:00 am at Bangabandhu International Conference Center (BICC), Agargaon, Sher-e-Bangla Nagar, 
Dhaka-1207 and at any adjournment thereof. 

Signed this . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2012.

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Signature of the Member(s) Signature of the PROXY

Number of Shares held . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Notes:
• The Proxy Form, duly filled and stamped, must be deposited at the Company’s Share Office located at Ardent Tower, Plot#9, Road 

#113/A. Gulshan-2, Dhaka-1212 not later than 72 hours before commencement of the AGM.

• Signature of the Member(s) must be in accordance with the Specimen Signature recorded with the Company.

Signature Verified by

Authorised Signatory of the Company





Grameenphone wants to contribute to meet climate challenges and aims to reduce 
the consumption of resources and overall impact on the environment. In an effort to 
minimize paper consumption, we limit the scope of the printed annual report within 
regulatory requirement. Grameenphone’s website provides extensive information 
about the Company and its current activities: www.grameenphone.com

Concept & Design by Benchmark PR   |   www.benchmarkpr.com.bd

Grameenphone Ltd.
GPHouse
Bashundhara, Baridhara, Dhaka-1229, Bangladesh
Tel: +880-2-9882990, Fax: +880-2-9882970
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